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The Public is provided with two opportunities to speak during the meeting. The first time is on each 
agenda item, and the second time is at the end of the agenda, on any other matter not on the agenda. 
These are limited to three (3) minutes unless further time is granted by the Presiding Officer.  All remarks 
shall be addressed to the Board as a body and not to any member of the Board or staff.  Please state your 
name and the name of the entity represented (if applicable) and the item on the agenda to be addressed. 
 
Pursuant to Florida Statutes 286.0105, if a person decided to appeal any decision made by the body with 
respect to any matter considered at such meeting, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and 
for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which 
record includes testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  
  
Meeting Link: https://districts.webex.com/districts/j.php?MTID=mc72386ba3db73d4d53a9191c941f5f8d 
 Phone: (408) 444-9388 Code: 2349 890 3778 Event Password Jpward    
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JAMES WARD, DISTRICT MANAGER 2 

 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order & Roll Call.  
 

2. Consideration of Minutes:  
I. November 4, 2025 - Regular Meeting. 

 Pages 5-27 
 

3. Consideration of Resolution 2026-2, a Resolution of the Tern Bay Community Development 
District Amending the Fiscal Year 2025 Budget which began on October 1, 2024, and ended 
September 30, 2025, and Fiscal Year 2026 Budget which Began on October 1, 2025 and Ends on 
September 30, 2026; Providing a Severability Clause; Providing for Conflict and Providing an 
Effective Date.  

Pages 28-39 
 

4. Consideration of Resolution 2026-3, a Resolution of the Tern Bay Community Development 
District to Designate Date, Time and Place of Public Hearing and Authorization to Publish Notice 
of Such Hearing for the Purpose of Adopting Rules of Procedure; and Providing an Effective Date. 

Page 40 
 
5. Consideration of Resolution 2026-4, a Resolution of the Tern Bay Community Development 

District to Designate Date, Time and Place of Public Hearing and Authorization to Publish Notice 
of Such Hearing for the Purpose of Adopting Rules of Procedure Relating to Vehicle Registration 
Fee; and Providing an Effective Date. 

Page 41 
 
6. Staff Reports. 

I. District Attorney. 
II. District Engineer. 

III. District Manager. 
a) Annual Ethics Training Reminder – due before December 31, 2025. 
b) Asset Managers Report – November 2025. 
c) Access System Transition Update 
d) Financial Report for the period ending October 31, 2025 (unaudited). 

Pages 42-81 
 
7.  Supervisor’s Requests: 

 
8.  Public Comments. 

 
9. Adjournment. 
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Tuesday, October 7, 2025 Tuesday, November 4, 2025 
  

Tuesday, December 2, 2025 Tuesday, January 6, 2026 
  

Tuesday, February 3, 2026 Tuesday, March 3, 2026 
  

Tuesday, April 7, 2026 Tuesday, May 5, 2026 
  

Tuesday, June 2, 2026 Tuesday, July 7, 2026 
  

Tuesday, August 4, 2026 Tuesday, September 1, 2026 
  

  

 
 
This portion of the agenda is provided for a more comprehensive explanation of the items for 
consideration by the Board of Supervisors during the meeting. 
 
Item 2: Minutes – November 4, 2025 - Regular Meeting. 
 
Item 3: Consideration of Resolution 2026-2, a Resolution of the Tern Bay Community 

Development District Amending the Fiscal Year 2025 Budget which began on October 1, 
2024, and ended September 30, 2025, and Fiscal Year 2026 Budget which Began on 
October 1, 2025, and Ends on September 30, 2026; Providing a Severability Clause; 
Providing for Conflict and Providing an Effective Date. 

 
Item 4: Consideration of Resolution 2026-3, a Resolution of the Tern Bay Community 

Development District to Designate Date, Time and Place of Public Hearing and 
Authorization to Publish Notice of Such Hearing for the Purpose of Adopting Rules of 
Procedure; and Providing an Effective Date. 

 
Item 5: Consideration of Resolution 2026-4, a Resolution of the Tern Bay Community 

Development District to Designate Date, Time and Place of Public Hearing and 
Authorization to Publish Notice of Such Hearing for the Purpose of Adopting Rules of 
Procedure Relating to Vehicle Registration Fee; and Providing an Effective Date. 

 
Item 6: Staff Reports: - Staff Reports are an opportunity to communicate to the Board of Supervisors 

on matters that did not require Board action or that did not appear on the Agenda and the 
Professional Staff deemed this to be of a matter that was to be brought to the attention for 
action or informational purposes of the Board of Supervisors before the ensuing Board of 
Supervisors Meeting.   



 

1 | P a g e  
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

TERN BAY 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

 4 
 5 

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Tern Bay Community Development 6 
District was held on Tuesday, November 4, 2025 at the Heritage Landing Amenity Center, 7 
14571 Heritage Landing Boulevard, Punta Gorda, Florida 33955. It began at 10:00 a.m. and 8 
was presided over by Ms. Tara Brady, Chairperson, and James P. Ward as Secretary. 9 
 10 

Present and constituting a quorum: 11 
Tara Brady    Chairperson 12 
Denise Blakely   Vice Chairperson  13 
Robert Brady    Assistant Secretary 14 
Vickey DeLuca   Assistant Secretary 15 
Gary Hamilton   Assistant Secretary 16 

 17 
Also present were: 18 
James P. Ward   District Manager 19 
Greg Urbancic    District Counsel 20 

 21 
Audience: 22 
Mary Longares    w/Heritage Landing Amenity Center 23 
Susan & Alex Gillan   Joe Hellner 24 
Alden Pierce    Dave Blakely 25 
Jeffrey Gordon   Kathy McAleer 26 
Ovidio Irizarry   Mary & Rick Lumpp 27 
Karen Powell    Larry Graham 28 
John Boyer    Rod & Amy Bradtmueller 29 
Rick Mills    Kathy & Roger Smith 30 
G Belt     Bobbi Bunker 31 
Larry Chiodi    Diane Stewart 32 
Judy Desrochers   Michael Sands 33 
Chris      Steve Basil 34 
Deb Christiansen   Char Laursen 35 
Jean Marc Poirien   Paula Poirien 36 
Mike Parker    Troy Martin 37 
Dan Forte 38 

 39 
  All residents’ names were not included with the minutes. If a resident did not 40 

identify themselves or the audio file did not pick up the name, the name was 41 
not recorded in these minutes. Portions of these minutes may be transcribed in 42 
verbatim. 43 

 44 
 45 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS  Call to Order/Roll Call 46 
 47 



Tern Bay Community Development District  November 4, 2025 

2 | P a g e  
 

The meeting was called to order at approximately 10:00 a.m. All Members of the Board were 48 
present, constituting a quorum.  49 
 50 
 51 
SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS  Consideration of Minutes 52 
 53 
October 7, 2025 – Regular Meeting Minutes 54 
 55 
Mr. Ward asked if there were any additions, corrections or deletions to the Minutes; hearing 56 
none, he called for a motion.  57 
 58 

On MOTION made by Vickey DeLuca, seconded by Gary 59 
Hamilton, and with all in favor, the October 7, 2025 Regular 60 
Meeting Minutes were approved. 61 

 62 
 63 
THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS  Presentation 64 
 65 
Presentation by EntranceIQ to provide an outline of how residents will transition access 66 
to the Community with the new system, including anticipated timelines 67 
 68 
Mr. Jim Ward: A bit of background information; the Board awarded the bid to EntranceIQ and 69 
Allied personnel for the purposes of the transition of the access gate.  We were able to get 70 
background information from Ramco in the last ten days with respect to the data they have 71 
from the existing system. Robert Belline with Entrance IQ is on the phone with us. His firm is 72 
the one who is responsible for converting all the existing data we have been able to get from 73 
Ramco. I'm not going to tell you that it's the best data I have ever seen in my life, but we got it. 74 
We are going to start the process of transitioning the EntranceIQ system and the personnel 75 
over a short period of time, but Robert is going to go through with the Board and the 76 
community his part of transition with respect to how it affects all of you as residents and how 77 
we will get you onto the new EntranceIQ system, what you will need to do, and how that 78 
process will occur on a going forward basis. I am sure there are a lot of questions. They have a 79 
lot of data. They have a lot of information that we will be transmitting to you during this 80 
transition process and also will probably go over some of the preliminary timing that we have 81 
in terms of transitioning. I will turn it over to Robert at this point.  82 
 83 
Mr. Robert Belline thanked the Board for choosing EntranceIQ. He provided some 84 
background information about EntranceIQ. He noted EntranceIQ was very experienced with 85 
this type of transition. He introduced Chad Stuck, the gentleman in charge of transitions. He 86 
indicated once the data was set and correct in the EntranceIQ system, residents would 87 
receive an email from the CDD with information about the upcoming transition, then an email 88 
from EntranceIQ would be sent out. He noted the email would include links for residents to 89 
download the EntranceIQ app, access the EntranceIQ website, watch the account activation 90 
tutorial, and activate their account on the app and/or website. He asked Mr. Chad Stuck if 91 
EntranceIQ would begin with a soft deployment. 92 
 93 
Mr. Chad Stuck responded in the affirmative. He noted EntranceIQ would need additional 94 
data, including email addresses from residents. He asked if the residents wished to purge the 95 
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existing guest list and start anew or bring over the old guest list. He said he did not need the 96 
answer now but wanted the CDD to think about it. He noted many communities chose to start 97 
fresh with the guest lists. He explained the deployment process: residents would receive an 98 
email with a pin number advising the resident how to login, where to download the app, a 99 
link to the website, and then after logging in, residents would be able to see their information 100 
on the website or the app or both. He noted this is where residents would be able to see the 101 
guest list. He stated EntranceIQ would also train Mr. Ward’s team regarding how to take calls 102 
from residents to help them with the process. He stated EntranceIQ would also be available 103 
to assist residents. He said training those who would be working with the system and the gate 104 
officers would then begin. He noted Allied personnel were likely experienced with 105 
EntranceIQ system, but training would be sent out regardless. He stated once training was 106 
done the system would go live.  107 
 108 
Mr. Ward asked if there were any questions; there were none. 109 
 110 
Mr. Stuck noted he was available to answer questions at any time, residents were welcome to 111 
call or email any questions to EntranceIQ. He discussed the timetable for education, training, 112 
and going live.  113 
 114 
Ms. Vickey DeLuca asked for advice regarding guest admittance within a builder turnover 115 
community such as Tern Bay. 116 
 117 
Mr. Stuck stated there were a couple of different options: one was to set up a resident, 118 
manager, or vendor category in the system and keep track of those being admitted that way, 119 
or the system could keep track of each vendor individually.  120 
 121 
Mr. Robert Belline noted if the builders were still holding open houses, those who were 122 
entering the community for these events would definitely be tracked as such.  123 
 124 
Mr. Ward noted he believed the builders were no longer holding open houses as there were 125 
no model homes left.  126 
 127 
Mr. Belline asked whether the developer still had control. 128 
 129 
Ms. DeLuca responded the developer did not have control, but it was likely there were 130 
construction vendors on resident guest lists which no longer needed to be on the guest list. 131 
She said it was important not to provide contractors and vendors with carte blanche access to 132 
the property if they were no longer working within the community.  133 
 134 
Mr. Belline said this was one reason why most communities cleared all guest lists and started 135 
anew.  136 
 137 
Chairperson Brady recommended clearing all guest lists and eliminating all previous RFID 138 
tags and having the residents obtain new tags for entrance. She said this would prevent those 139 
who had RFID tags but should not from entering the community.  140 
 141 
Mr. Stuck stated once EntranceIQ went live, the RFID tag situation could be evaluated, and 142 
those which had not accessed the community in a month or two could be shut down, or new 143 
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RFIDs could be distributed during a phase out period. He explained both systems should be 144 
run for a little while to give residents time to obtain the new RFIDs before shutting down the 145 
old RFIDs completely. He explained it was typically done alphabetically by days, residents 146 
would come in, register and pickup the new RFID, before the old ones were shut down 147 
completely on a “drop dead” date.  148 
 149 
Mr. Belline stated SWFL IT would be installing the cameras, so it would be a migration over 150 
time. He explained EntranceIQ could not turn all the transponders off at once because then 151 
residents would not be able to get in and chaos would ensue. He explained when residents 152 
logged into the app, one of the first things which could be done was updating vehicles. He 153 
noted residents typically updated their vehicle information immediately.  154 
 155 
Mr. Joe Hellner agreed the RFIDs should be purged. He said he hoped the app would give 156 
him the option to roll over his personal guest list and he would not be required to recreate 157 
his guest list in its entirety.  158 
 159 
Mr. Belline explained pulling old guest lists into the system would hinder, not help the 160 
transition. He explained very often the guest lists were old and had many guests listed who 161 
should no longer have access to the community; therefore, he recommended transitioning 162 
without the old guest lists. He stated it did not take long to fill in the guest list, about 3 to 4 163 
minutes, as it was a simple process. 164 
 165 
Ms. DeLuca explained when a resident registered an individual on the guest list, said guest 166 
no longer had to go to the front gate to gain access; access could be gained through any 167 
gate as the license plate reader would pick up the license plate and automatically grant 168 
access.  169 
 170 
Mr. Hellner stated his question was could a roll over guest list option be used for residents to 171 
look over their existing guest list and then decide whether or not it should be rolled into the 172 
new system.  173 
 174 
Chairperson Brady explained the old database still included old guests which had been 175 
previously deleted, which was a problem, and it would be better to start guest lists from 176 
scratch.  177 
 178 
Ms. _____ 20:18 noted she read in the minutes that the community had public roads, and 179 
anyone could enter including solicitors, and if a resident wanted to avoid soliciting said 180 
resident had to put up no trespassing signs. She asked if this was true, and if so, why was the 181 
community paying for gated security. 182 
 183 
Chairperson Brady stated the roads were public roads but having them gated made the 184 
community a little more secure than just having an open road. She explained with security at 185 
least the community could keep track of who entered the community. She noted it was a 186 
deterrence because many individuals were not aware of the fact that the roads were public 187 
and technically anyone could enter. She said, while anyone could enter, drivers had to 188 
present a license to gain entry, and this information was recorded. 189 
 190 
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Discussion ensued regarding the roads being public, the gates still deterring unwanted entry, 191 
the residents being sold “private gated community,” and guests entering through the 192 
resident access gate. 193 
 194 
Chairperson Brady stated she was not okay with guests gaining entry through the resident 195 
access gate; only residents should be permitted to enter through the resident access gate.  196 
 197 
Discussion ensued and the rest of the Board agreed.  198 
 199 
Mr. Belline stated on deployment, guests would not be able to enter through the resident 200 
gate. He stated EntranceIQ had the ability to allow guests access through the resident gate if 201 
the community so chose, but from the onset guests would be required to enter through the 202 
guest entrance and be checked in at the gatehouse. He noted it would be up to the 203 
community how it wished to proceed and processes could change according to the 204 
community’s needs in the future. He said certainly to start all guests would be required to 205 
check in before entry; guests would not be allowed to enter through the resident access 206 
gate. 207 
 208 
Ms. Denise Blakely noted the guest list could include a time limit as well; guests could be on 209 
the list for a limited time and then automatically removed. 210 
 211 
Mr. Belline agreed. He explained when someone was added to the guest list, the resident 212 
had the ability to choose a 1 time entry for today, tomorrow, or during a date range. He 213 
noted even permanent guests were only on the list for a limited time and then had to be 214 
refreshed. He noted this information was all included in the residents’ training material which 215 
was a link in the email.  216 
 217 
Ms. _____24:40 noted she was a seasonal resident and she often had a rental car when she 218 
returned to her home in the community. She asked if she would have to register her car at the 219 
gate every time she returned with a rental car. 220 
 221 
Chairperson Brady explained the app on the phone would allow her to enter her rental 222 
license plate in the app and then go through the guest gate upon first entry, after which she 223 
would be able to use the resident gate.  224 
 225 
Mr. Belline: For security reasons, when you change your license plate, a notification will be 226 
sent to Jim’s team, from there it has to be verified and approved. That’s so not anyone can just 227 
add a license plate to the system and say yep, come on in. They have to approve it and that’s 228 
what allows it. Let’s start at the beginning. We have to start with your transponder system. It 229 
will take 60 to 90 days to get all the residents onto the app where everything is good. From 230 
there we will discuss the next phase, and then we will watch the reads, make sure everything is 231 
clean, and we will slowly transition over from one system to the other. Once that is done, we 232 
will release the next phase in the process. The next phase in the process is “X” where residents 233 
can add their vehicles then either the entries could be auto approved, or Jim’s team can 234 
approve it, but then we do that process. We are going to start small because when you throw 235 
too much at a community all at once, the community fails, so we have to do this in a phased 236 
approach otherwise nothing good will come from this.  237 
 238 
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Discussion ensued regarding the installation of cameras to read tags for admittance at the 239 
resident gate; the speed of the tag reader for entry; RFID stickers no longer being a viable 240 
means for entry; vehicles with paper tags, tall vehicles with elevated tags, and vehicles towing 241 
a trailer needing to go through the guardhouse gate; and piggybacking through the gate 242 
should no longer be possible with the new system. 243 
 244 
Mr. Ward noted the back gate was a total disaster and he was still working on the problem.  245 
 246 
Chairperson Brady recommended only opening one side of the back gate; there was no 247 
reason for both sides of the back gate to open for access. 248 
 249 
Mr. Ward discussed the piggyback problem at the back gate; piggyback vehicles breaking 250 
the gate arms; and the potential to keep one side of the gate closed and adjusting the timing 251 
of the gate to prevent piggybacking.  252 
 253 
Chairperson Brady noted only residents should be allowed to exit through the resident gate; 254 
all guests should be required to enter and exit through the guardhouse gate.  255 
 256 
Discussion ensued regarding drivers breaking the gates; fining drivers who broke the gates; 257 
the new system hopefully would be able to track and penalize drivers who break the gates; 258 
and how other communities handled broken gates. 259 
 260 
Mr. Belline stated generally other communities looked at the camera feed to see when it was 261 
broken, went to the EntranceIQ system, pulled up the vehicle who came through the gate at 262 
that time, identified the driver, and issued a citation for the damage.  263 
 264 
Mr. Stuck explained there was a running traffic log which showed the entries of the license 265 
plates, the entrance of the guests, and the entrance would include a picture of the license 266 
plate for reference.  267 
 268 
Ms. DeLuca stated for emergency reasons, for public safety reasons, anyone should be 269 
allowed to exit through the back gate; the back gate should not be reserved for resident exit 270 
only.  271 
 272 
Discussion ensued regarding exiting from the back gate versus guardhouse; public safety 273 
issues with restricting access to exits; and various ways first responders accessed the gates.  274 
 275 
Mr. Stuck: That’s actually County specific. Every County has its own access. The thing you're 276 
talking about is called the SOS and that’s the siren access. Some of them have a clicker which 277 
grants gate access. Others have a Knox Box which allows first responder access with a key. 278 
Every fire department and police department has to follow the County code in this regard.  279 
 280 
Discussion ensued regarding Charlotte County using the siren system for entry; and the fire 281 
department across the street not being close enough for sirens to open the community gates. 282 
 283 
Discussion ensued regarding not using RFID readers once the transition was complete; 284 
switching to a plate reader system; which types of vehicles would not be able to use the plate 285 
reader for access and would be required to utilize the front guardhouse gate; normal sedans, 286 
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vans and SUVs would have no difficulty with the plate reader; large work and delivery 287 
vehicles likely needing to use the front guardhouse gate. 288 
 289 
Mr. Belline: From our side, it's extremely important, if we want to be effective, that the 290 
residents should watch for the email from EntranceIQ, make sure to open said email, activate 291 
the account, build a profile. It only takes a few minutes. From there forward, anytime you have 292 
a guest come in, if you use the app to add the guest, it will make the process through the 293 
gatehouse smoother and will allow the guests to enter more quickly. It will really change the 294 
whole process in a good way tenfold. Every time we say this to a community, the community 295 
says yeah we are ready to do it, when they do follow the simple steps, every community 296 
recognizes the system works very well. We just have to be proactive rather than reactive. When 297 
you have a guest coming over, add the guest ahead of time. Don’t wait until the guard has to 298 
do it. That’s what slows down the process. Like Chad said, since you have Allied coming in, 299 
they are well versed in our system. They know it very well. Your team will already be trained 300 
before they even come on site. They will be trained through our system. The biggest 301 
challenge will be getting the residents on board. 302 
 303 
Mr. Ward: Can you provide a generalized timeline on the transition itself?  304 
 305 
Mr. Stuck: Once I have the data and I know where I'm at – that’s the lynchpin which is holding 306 
this all together – then I’ll have just about every date set for you. We will go back and forth 307 
because you may have your own start date in mind, but December 8 is what we are shooting 308 
for, for the go live. 309 
 310 
Mr. Belline: Yes. We are trying to coordinate with Allied, and our data is the biggest challenge 311 
for us. 312 
 313 
Mr. Stuck: I’ll know more once I see that data. I’ll be able to give you exact dates for 314 
everything.  315 
 316 
Ms. DeLuca: If we are going live sometime in mid-December, is there an opportunity to do a 317 
video training for all the people who will be coming down after January 1st? Do a training 318 
offering to the community so that we don’t get massive backups when the snowbirds start 319 
coming down?  320 
 321 
Mr. Stuck: The truth of the matter is, our training videos are set up in such a way – they are so 322 
easy. What we are going to do – keep in mind – we are going to do that initial welcome email, 323 
and then see what kind of response we get, and then do a second email to those who didn’t 324 
log in or haven’t signed up for the app. I'm not saying we wouldn’t do it, but I think the training 325 
videos are the better solution. 326 
 327 
Chairperson Brady: Everybody is going to get that email, everybody is going to get the same 328 
training. With all respect, just because you're a snowbird doesn’t mean you should get a 329 
special 30 minute training video in person over everybody else. If we get it, and we send out 330 
another email saying do it, and if they don’t, when they get here if they have to wait a little bit, 331 
that’s on them.  332 
 333 
Ms. DeLuca: I wasn’t asking for in person training, just a video.  334 
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 335 
Chairperson Brady: If you want to send a video to everybody, but I wouldn’t say snowbirds get 336 
that and not everybody.  337 
 338 
Mr. _____46:37: Has anyone thought of the ramifications of the public roads, the new system, 339 
and the real estate system? Because people are going to be allowed to come in. No more 340 
restrictions on open houses.  341 
 342 
Chairperson Brady: The open house restriction is an HOA rule. They can do it on Saturday or 343 
Sunday from 1 to 4. That’s an HOA rule. 344 
 345 
Mr. _____: How about people who want to show their home? 346 
 347 
Chairperson Brady: They have to put the name on the guest list, or if it's just a realtor coming 348 
to show my house, when they get to the gate they have to give all their information and then 349 
they can come in. It would be the same as what they do right now. 350 
 351 
Mr. _____: That’s not legal. 352 
 353 
Chairperson Brady: We can ask them what they are doing. It’s illegal to deny them access, but 354 
we can stop them and get their information the same way we are doing now.  355 
 356 
Discussion ensued regarding realtors and access to the community; property owners adding 357 
tenants as guests; tenants not having access through the resident gate; and tenants being 358 
required to use the guardhouse gate. 359 
 360 
Mr. _____ asked what would happen if a driver approached the guardhouse gate, refused to 361 
provide identification but demanded access. 362 
 363 
Mr. Ward: We have to put together the procedures. The law in Florida, given these are public 364 
roads, if someone approached the front gate and refused to provide identification, the gate 365 
guard has the right to ask for identification. The same for delivery guys; they still have to 366 
provide identification for access through the gate.  367 
 368 
Mr. Greg Urbancic: We are not dealing with really bright line federal regulations on this, but I 369 
can tell you what we do in a lot of communities where we have similar situations. We don’t 370 
deny people access if they don’t show ID. We try to at least get a name and record 371 
information. But those communities wave them through so we are complying with access to 372 
public roadways, but we do let them know if they venture on private property, they are 373 
trespassing and that the authorities will be called. They have to stay on the public roads. That’s 374 
generally how it is in other communities, but again, there isn’t a clear federal regulation or 375 
statute to say how you do this. I'm just giving you my experience with other communities.  376 
 377 
Chairperson Brady: And at least we would have their license plates as well.  378 
 379 
Mr. Ward: A government entity has the right to ask for a driver's license to come in. I don’t see 380 
a problem with this community doing this. We still have to let them in, but we can ask for a 381 
driver’s license. 382 
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 383 
Discussion continued regarding allowing entry to the community with or without a driver's 384 
license; the community not having the right to refuse entry; and the guard making a notation 385 
about the driver who refused to provide identification and gathering the tag information 386 
prior to entry. 387 
 388 
 389 
FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Staff Reports 390 
 391 

I. District Attorney 392 
 393 
Mr. Urbancic: We have an early legislative session coming up in January this year. The 394 
bills have already started to flood in. I will update you as that goes along. There are some 395 
of the usual suspects that we see in bills like trying to change the limits of sovereign 396 
immunity, to raise the caps. It failed last year. We will see if it goes through this year. 397 
There is also another bill out there which would do away with the goals and objectives 398 
statute. It just deletes it from the record. I know a lot of people were hoping that goes 399 
through. We will see. There is also one that would create an administrative burden on us 400 
in relation to – I don’t know how else to describe it other than it gives people who are 401 
adversely affected by some action of a special district the right to have some sort of 402 
appeal process to whatever action that we take. I'm hoping that one doesn’t go through 403 
because it would cause a bit of a procedural nightmare. We will have to see.  404 

 405 
II. District Engineer 406 

 407 
Chairperson Brady stated the Engineer was not present as he was at a meeting finalizing 408 
the plat for the CDD.  409 

 410 
III. District Manager 411 

 412 

a. Annual Ethics Training Reminder – due before December 31, 2025. 413 
b. Asset Managers Report – October 2025 414 
c. Financial report for the period ending September 30, 2025 (unaudited) 415 
d. Important Board Meeting Dates for Fiscal Year 2026 416 

1. Tuesday, December 2, 2025: Public Hearing – Rules of Procedure Revisions 417 
 418 

Chairperson Brady reminded the Board to complete the ethics training requirement 419 
before December 31, 2025.  420 
 421 
Discussion ensued regarding the ethics training requirement and self-reporting 422 
completion of the ethics training requirement on Form 1. 423 
 424 
Chairperson Brady noted the gate arm was broken approximately 7 times over the 425 
past five weeks. She stated in terms of streetlight repair, the CDD has asked FPL to fix 426 
the streetlights repeatedly with little to no response; therefore, the CDD has decided 427 
to take the expense upon itself and fix the streetlights without FPL assistance.  428 
 429 
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Ms. Vickey DeLuca stated in the May meeting she reported on the streetlights and 430 
indicated 17 lights were out. She stated she worked with Mary to ensure these were 431 
recorded. She noted she obtained the streetlight numbers to be reported to FPL. She 432 
said she drove around last night and 12 of the 17 lights were fixed and looked 433 
wonderful; FPL fixed the lights. She asked if these were reported.  434 
 435 
Mr. Ward: Mary has been reporting them to FPL. They are on a 3 to 4 month time 436 
schedule for purposes of repair. We were getting a ton of complaints because of so 437 
many lights being out. We have identified a vendor who can do the repairs much more 438 
quickly then FPL.  439 
 440 
Ms. DeLuca: What’s that expense, because these dozen were fixed at no resident 441 
expense. 442 
 443 
Mr. Ward: It took four months is the point. 444 
 445 
Ms. DeLuca: What will it cost if we fix them? 446 
 447 
Mr. Ward: I think it is $300 or $400 dollars each to fix them. It shouldn’t be too much.  448 
 449 
Chairperson Brady: There are fifteen lights out right now. At a cost of less than $5,000 450 
dollars I would rather get them done now, get them up, and then if it's one out here 451 
and there, and we can wait a few months for FPL to catch up, then from that point 452 
forward we can let FPL do it. 453 
 454 
Ms. DeLuca: Are we paying a contact fee for FPL to service our lights? 455 
 456 
Mr. Ward: It's included in the price. These are leased lights, so you pay a monthly lease 457 
fee for the lights which includes the maintenance cost for it. Mary, what she does, she 458 
sends an email to FPL with a repair list. They have been on a very long lag for purposes 459 
of repair for whatever reason.  460 
 461 
Ms. DeLuca: So, you are saying this will be a one time charge. We will pay to have 462 
these 15 lights fixed and then we will let FPL take over maintenance and repair again.  463 
 464 
Chairperson Brady: We will take it from there. If FPL then takes another six months to fix 465 
lights again, then I personally think the safety of having the lights fixed is something we 466 
can take on.  467 
 468 
Ms. DeLuca: When will we be able to get out of that contract with FPL? 469 
 470 
Mr. Ward: You can terminate the lease; that’s the easy part. The hard part is what you 471 
will have to do if you terminate the contracts. You have a built out community, so there 472 
are not really a lot of options. A lot of communities are turning to solar light systems 473 
because of the cost of the FPL light system, to the all around costs that go with it. I'm 474 
seeing new communities in the 2024 - 2025 time frame, they are all going to these 475 
solar systems which are relatively inexpensive, but this is a pretty big system, so at the 476 
end of the day it will still be pricey to change out the light system. 477 
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 478 
Chairperson Brady: The new pedestrian crosswalk sign at River (indecipherable) was 479 
put in. Landscape contract bidding: we have a partial map I want to go over with you 480 
guys. We put an advertisement out for bidding and prebid meeting is November 12, 481 
with bids due by December 1st. I listened to the last HOA meeting, and I think there is 482 
some confusion. The HOA made a statement that the CDD was taking over all common 483 
areas and that is not what we discussed. We discussed taking over CDD owned 484 
property. There is a lot of common area which is not CDD owned property that was not 485 
going to go into the landscape contract. So, we need to meet with the HOA with the 486 
map to say this is what we are doing, we are not taking over all common property 487 
because over by your side the islands are HOA. The HOA owns all the back stuff 488 
coming in the south gate behind all of those new houses there, etc. There is quite a bit 489 
of common area which is owned by the HOA. The intent that I had when we discussed 490 
taking over was the landscaping along the main heritage landing, the road that we 491 
owned and that right-of-way, and then along Burnt Store Road, the front area that we 492 
own, and the entrances. It wasn’t all HOA property. Is that what everybody’s intent was? 493 
 494 
Discussion ensued regarding whether the CDD should take over just CDD owned 495 
property, or CDD and HOA owned property; what was owned by the CDD and what 496 
was owned by the HOA; and outlining on a map which areas would be the 497 
responsibility of the HOA versus the CDD to prevent confusion. 498 
 499 
Chairperson Brady pulled up a map and reviewed what property was owned by the 500 
CDD and HOA and who would be responsible for which portions of which. She stated 501 
this information would be given to the landscaping company.  502 
 503 
Ms. Blakely said she felt it might be a better idea for either the CDD or the HOA to 504 
take over all the landscaping rather than piecemealing the landscaping.  505 
 506 
Discussion continued regarding the landscaping maintenance around the lakes; what 507 
property was owned by the CDD and what property should be maintained by the 508 
CDD; who currently mowed which properties; and whether the CDD should take over 509 
the condo mowing. 510 
 511 
Mr. Ward: Master plan communities are what they are. Sometimes you have one group 512 
which does everything, but I have a ton of communities in which that is not true. In a 513 
normal community like this, the CDD should be maintaining its facilities or assets. By 514 
general concept, you should be doing the arterial roadways; to the extent there is a 515 
lake next to it, we can maintain that. Obviously, we should do Burnt Store Road. I could 516 
care less at the end of the day whether we do the 5 foot strip of land on a single family 517 
lot or not. It doesn’t matter that much at the end of the day to the CDD or to the 518 
homeowner whether we do it or the HOA does it. Lake banks, in a normal world, the 519 
homeowner maintains the lake bank down to the water’s edge for the purposes of 520 
mowing. The District maintains the lake bank for purposes of the integrity of the lake 521 
bank. We will have to go in at some point and restore those lake banks because they 522 
get destroyed for various reasons. Usually, it’s a hurricane. We will have to restore it, 523 
put the sod back down and then it's back to the homeowners for purposes of 524 
maintaining. That to me is the simple way of doing things, but the ownership of it, we 525 



Tern Bay Community Development District  November 4, 2025 

12 | P a g e  
 

can figure it out at the end of the day with the maps, but in my simple mind I kind of 526 
know what we need to maintain with respect to the main roadway down to the water’s 527 
edge, Burnt Store Road, the single family lots, that 5 foot stretch, I'm fine with doing 528 
those. If right now the HOA wants to do those, who cares? At the end of the day, it's a 529 
minor issue that we just need to have a little discussion about. From my perspective, 530 
we are ready to go to bid, because I know what we are doing although we don’t have a 531 
finalized map of it. I have a pretty good idea of exactly where everything is, but the 532 
map is not perfect yet because the plat is not recorded yet, but we don’t need to 533 
overthink it either.  534 
 535 
Chairperson Brady: Aquatic maintenance, the canoe launch area has been cleared out 536 
and they have the trail on a normal maintenance plan, so it won't get overgrown like it 537 
had become. Algae has been treated. They have been doing the spraying for cattails 538 
and grasses along the water. They have been doing the planting. I have some pond 539 
books here on pond maintenance if anybody wants those, but the planting placed in 540 
the littoral shelves that’s required by SWFMD is being done. I will say the water is 541 
probably the clearest I have ever seen it. They are beautiful water quality wise. We have 542 
the storm drain cleaning. The vendor has been out there cleaning out all of the pipes. 543 
They are doing the 167 inlets, so all of those pipes are getting cleaned.  544 
 545 
Ms. Blakely: Will all the lakes get plants? 546 
 547 
Mr. Ward: No. Littoral shelves are what we call the base 1 area which is the original 7 548 
units done pre-Lennar. That’s the only area that has a littoral shelf to it, so that’s where 549 
we have been putting littorals. I've gotten a lot of questions from residents who live in 550 
that area with the littorals, what we are putting in, some like it, some don’t like it. The 551 
rest of the community, we haven’t gotten to the point of seeing if we can put in any 552 
littorals. It will really depend on how the lake was done and whether there is any kind of 553 
area to put littorals. It is not on the plate for the next four months at least.  554 
 555 
Discussion ensued regarding the littoral plantings and lake vegetation.  556 
 557 
Mr. Ward: There is not a lot of vegetation around the lakes that will grow back other 558 
than the cattails, and they are terrible for your water management system. I think it will 559 
be a good idea to put some plants in which can help the system, but that’s going to be 560 
a few months out because we don’t know where we can put them at this point.  561 
 562 
Chairperson Brady explained some of the lakes were dug straight down without a 563 
littoral shelf for planting; however, she felt something should be planted around the 564 
edges of the lakes without littoral shelves.  565 
 566 
Ms. DeLuca noted the lake numbers meant nothing to her and she would like a map. 567 
 568 
Chairperson Brady said as soon as the plat was recorded a map could be drawn up.  569 
 570 
Ms. DeLuca asked what the cost was to install the plants on the littoral shelves, and 571 
how much it was going to cost to maintain the plants. 572 
 573 
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Mr. Ward: Maintaining a water management system was not simply treating it with 574 
chemicals. It was treating it with chemicals, putting in littoral plantings to help reduce 575 
the amount of chemicals needed to balance the entire system. I don’t think the overall 576 
cost is going to be different than what I said before. I think we spent like $20,000 577 
dollars on the littoral plantings, but it's important not to look at that. It's important to 578 
look at how to maintain the overall balance of the water management system going 579 
forward. That includes littoral plantings, chemical treatments, and we will be looking at 580 
aeration systems in the future that need to be done, and even maybe a fish program 581 
might need to be implemented to help balance this ecosystem.  582 
 583 
Mr. Hamilton: So, our overall budget of $75,000 dollars, we are not going over that 584 
right? It was all part of the master plan. 585 
 586 
Mr. Ward: Yeah, I think we are pretty close. I think it's really important to remember that 587 
those were very pie in the sky numbers back then. I had no basis to know what the 588 
number was actually going to be. I am going to do a budget amendment in another 589 
month or two to true up our actual costs. I anticipate doing that at your January 590 
meeting. 591 
 592 
Chairperson Brady: We did talk about planting the littoral shelves and doing all of that. 593 
That was four or five months ago. So, we did talk about doing this.  594 
 595 
Discussion ensued regarding informing the residents about the littoral plantings; 596 
producing a map illustrating where the various lakes were located and the lake 597 
numbers.  598 
 599 
Ms. DeLuca: Everything on the bridge from the pickleball courts to terraces 1 through 6 600 
is phase 1, so all the ponds which are on the back side of Heritage Landing are not 601 
littoral shelve ponds, although there are massive messes on the back side. So, the back 602 
side is phase 2? 603 
 604 
Chairperson Brady: There might be one or two that have littoral shelves in phase 2.  605 
 606 
Ms. DeLuca: Hole 7 and 8 are just a mess. 607 
 608 
Mr. Ward: The whole area between 7 and 8 does have a littoral shelf right in the middle 609 
of it.  610 
 611 
Chairperson Brady: What’s wrong? 612 
 613 
Ms. DeLuca: It is 100% grown over. 614 
 615 
Discussion ensued regarding the pond at holes 7, 8 and 9 being overgrown in certain 616 
areas; whether the pond at hole 7, 8 and 9 had littoral shelves; the lakes on the golf 617 
course all having littoral shelves; the HOA not properly maintaining the lakes to 618 
SWFMD guidelines in the past; the CDD owning the lakes; the CDD taking over lake 619 
maintenance and being required to follow SWFMD guidelines. 620 
 621 
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Chairperson Brady reported in terms of hog trapping, USDA had been on site; 622 
approximately 10 hogs were sited, but none were trapped. She said within the next 623 
week she hoped the hogs might be caught. 624 
 625 
Mr. Ward stated he understood the USDA caught some hogs this week.  626 
 627 
Chairperson Brady stated there was a lot more cane toad activity in October; 628 
therefore, a lot more cane toad cleanup was being done including clearing of 629 
tadpoles and catching live toads.  630 
 631 
Ms. DeLuca asked about the hog trapping cost changes with the change to the USDA 632 
as a vendor. 633 
 634 
Mr. Ward explained the cost was a little less than with the previous vendor. He noted 635 
the USDA also provided hog trapping services to Charlotte County and therefore had 636 
experience and much better technology than the previous vendor.  637 
 638 
Chairperson Brady stated December 2nd was the public hearing for Rules of Procedure 639 
Revision.  640 
 641 
Mr. Ward: There is a thing called Rules of Procedure. Rules of Procedure are how we 642 
do things. Statute says we are supposed to have rules of procedure. 99.9% of 643 
everything you see in the rules are already codified in law. There is an old rule from the 644 
very beginning of this District that’s in place that has the rules of procedure in it. As we 645 
were going through some of our archived records we found the rule, and I'm going to 646 
amend the rule and delete all of the items that are already in the statute that we are 647 
required to do simply because I don’t want to have a rule out there that says one thing, 648 
the law gets changed, and then we forget to go back and change the rule itself. It 649 
doesn’t need to be in two locations. That’s the thought. Greg and I are just going 650 
through that quickly, but the rule is going to be short and sweet at this point in time, 651 
unless you want to add something unusual to it. But anything codified in law will come 652 
out of the existing rule that we have. That’s all we are doing. It's a complicated 653 
procedure that requires a public hearing. It requires a lot of advertising. Most Counties 654 
and Cities, they have land use matters with rules of procedures, we don’t have those 655 
kinds of things, so it really needs to be as simple as we can get it. We are just trying to 656 
reduce the rules of procedures to things that are not already codified in statute.  657 

 658 
 659 
FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Supervisor’s Requests 660 
 661 
Chairperson Brady asked if there were any Supervisor’s requests or questions.  662 
 663 
Ms. DeLuca asked when the auditors were going to finish the audit for fiscal year 2025.  664 
 665 
Mr. Ward responded the initial documents were sent to the auditors; the audit should be 666 
completed by December, received by January, and he would present the audit in February.  667 
 668 
Ms. Blakely asked about the fluorescent green dog waste bin. She said it was tacky.  669 
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 670 
Chairperson Brady said the HOA installed the dog waste bins. She stated the HOA installed 671 
more than they were supposed to; the HOA was not supposed to install any more dog bins 672 
without CDD permission. 673 
 674 
Mr. Ward stated he would have Greg Urbancic send a letter to the HOA telling them to cease 675 
and desist installation of dog bins. He said the CDD asked the HOA to stop a few times, if the 676 
HOA did not wish to respond, it was fine, a cease and desist letter would be sent. 677 
 678 
Ms. DeLuca asked if the HOA could be asked to remove certain dog bins, for example the 679 
dog bin on the golf course where residents were not supposed to be walking dogs.  680 
 681 
Mr. Ward responded if the dog bin was on CDD property then the CDD could have it 682 
removed.  683 
 684 
Discussion ensued regarding the dog bins; the strange placement of certain dog bins; the 685 
terrible color of the bins; asking the HOA to paint a certain dog bin black and move the bin to 686 
a more sensible location.  687 
 688 
Chairperson Brady indicated she would speak with the HOA about moving and painting one 689 
of the dog bins before Mr. Urbancic sent the letter; if the HOA was unresponsive Mr. 690 
Urbancic could include the request in the letter. 691 
 692 
 693 
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Public Comments 694 
 695 
Chairperson Brady asked if there were any resident comments. She discussed the standard 3 696 
minute protocol for residents’ comments noting she would listen to all comments and then 697 
answer the questions. 698 
 699 
Mr. Jean Marc Poirien asked how often the water flow was monitored. He asked how deep 700 
the CDD went into the preserves to monitor the water flow. 701 
 702 
Mr. Troy Martin reported the HOA would have its budget meeting soon. He said he hoped 703 
the CDD would work closely with the HOA to ensure everyone was clear on who would 704 
maintain what in terms of landscaping. He stated he hoped the CDD would provide the map 705 
it was creating to the HOA, the golf course, and he thought it would be a better idea for a 706 
single contractor to manage the landscaping throughout the community. He suggested 707 
sending out information to the residents once the map was done and the landscaping issue 708 
settled. He thanked the CDD for allowing resident input. He asked who provided internet to 709 
the community. He asked if it might be possible to contact the internet provider and 710 
negotiate a lower rate for the whole community.  711 
 712 
Mr. Steve Basil suggested wrapping the poles of the broken lights with yellow tape, per FPL 713 
protocol, so FPL workers could easily identify which lights were out. He asked if the palm tree 714 
lights were intended to remain up year round. He said he felt the lights should only be up in 715 
November and December. He asked if the bushes could be trimmed to allow better 716 
visualization of the up lights. He suggested asking the residents to vote about whether the 717 
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decorative lighting should be left up year round or for a few months. He stated he felt speed 718 
limits signs were needed in the community; he saw a driver dangerously speeding by the golf 719 
course. He asked who was responsible for the wells, the HOA or the CDD.  720 
 721 
Mr. Dan Forte: asked about the plants in the pond by the 11th hole. He stated he felt there 722 
were better aeration methods for the pond and felt the plants were clogging the pond.  723 
 724 
Mr. Joe Hellner stated the pond near the 7th, 8th and 9th hole was unique in that it was 725 
massively altered during the development of the south side. He stated several years ago the 726 
pond was normal with very little vegetation, but now the pond was massively choked with 727 
vegetation. He explained during development Lennar allowed the pond to drain and it 728 
stayed drained for several months; eventually Lennar restored the pond. He noted during the 729 
period it was dry, vegetation grew like crazy and once it refilled it was still choked with 730 
vegetation. He stated Hurricane Ian caused the pond to drain, and while Lennar fixed the 731 
pond, the pond was never brought back to the level it was before Hurricane Ian damaged the 732 
pond. He said he felt this was a restoration issue; the developer damaged the pond, changed 733 
its nature, and the issue was how, under the laws and regulations, the pond could be 734 
restored to what it was historically. He said he understood Mr. Ward had pictures and 735 
information about the lake, its history, and what it should look like. He asked for this lake to 736 
be added to the CDD’s to do list.  737 
 738 
Mr. Rick Mills stated the pump in the pond behind hole 13 had gone down. He said the pond 739 
had not been the same since Hurricane Ian and with the pond being out, the pond could go 740 
from 3 feet deep to basically a swamp. He said the littoral plantings done recently looked 741 
terrible. He noted the pond had not been maintained properly in a very long time and he 742 
hoped the CDD would take care of it. 743 
 744 
Ms. ______1:56:03 discussed the pond at hole 13. She stated it was pond 37. She said it did 745 
not look good and the new plants completely blocked her view.  746 
 747 
Mr. Rod Bradtmeuller suggested going to speak to someone in the FPL office in person 748 
rather than sending an email about the broken lights. He said if this did not work the CDD 749 
could contact the Florida Public Service Commission, the regulatory commission which 750 
oversaw FPL, and file a complaint. He stated this would likely push FPL to fix the lights quickly. 751 
He stated the CDD had the power of some 1,500 doors.  752 
 753 
Ms. Diane Stewart stated on Heritage Landing near the Verandahs were stakes with pink 754 
flags. She asked what these were for. She stated she thought at the October meeting the 755 
CDD had recommended taking over the ponds because the landscapers were dumping 756 
clippings into the ponds and the ponds required special equipment for proper mowing.  757 
 758 
Mr. Ward asked if there were any additional questions or comments; there were none.  759 
 760 
Chairperson Brady answered the questions from the audience: I do not know what the stakes 761 
are. I saw the stakes, and I put a call in to the engineer to see if he knew what those stakes 762 
were for. The pond banks, yes, you are correct, I think the CDD should take the banks. The 763 
batwing mowers are much easier on the banks and will not damage them as much. The 764 
clippings, we talked to the golf course because we watched the golf guys go to the bridge on 765 
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hole 7 and dump the clippings off the bridge into the lake. So, we had that conversation, so 766 
they know they are not supposed to be doing that. Lights, we can look into that. I personally 767 
still say, let’s get that done instead of waiting longer, but moving forward from that point we 768 
can try other avenues. I do have a contact that I normally deal with, and I have a call into with 769 
them to see if there is anything they can do to help us get them because it's not like it's just 770 
one streetlight, it's an entire community. We have a list of what was planted in every lake, by 771 
the lake, that Jim can give you, and the average height they can grow is 24 to 36 inches. I 772 
texted Jim over the weekend that we have a problem, the lake is way down, because the well 773 
is not working right and they are using the lake water for irrigation which is why the lake on the 774 
right hand side by 14 and 15 is down so much. We have to figure out something to do with 775 
that because it's down by 1 to 2 feet right now. It looks a lot worse because of the slope and 776 
the littoral, but the actual water is low, and we are starting dry season.  777 
 778 
Ms. DeLuca: Do you have tee box 16 on your list as well? It's literally dried up.  779 
 780 
Chairperson Brady: That’s what I sent the picture of, from 16 down to 8. Hole 8 pond, I will pull 781 
the SWFMD permits for all of them because SWFMD has the original design of all the ponds 782 
and we will make sure they are correct. This is the first time I have heard that they were 783 
damaged and that Lennar tried to repair it. Also, hole 8,  isn’t that the one you were going to 784 
put the wall on? How are those engineering plans going? 785 
 786 
Mr. _____: We staked it out yesterday. The engineer is supposed to be out Monday.  787 
 788 
Chairperson Brady: So, hole 8, the golf board is looking at making that a signature hole and 789 
where the green is they are going to build a wall, a retaining wall around it, so you’ll either hit 790 
the green or your are in the water, but as part of that they have to get a SWFMD permit too. As 791 
SWFMD reviews that, they are going to say, hey, this lake has changed too. But we will pull the 792 
permits for the lakes to make sure they are what they are supposed to be.  793 
 794 
Ms. Blakely asked who was draining the ponds for irrigation. She said it did not make sense to 795 
work on the lakes, install plants, only to have the lakes drained. 796 
 797 
Discussion ensued regarding using lake water to irrigate community grounds.  798 
 799 
Chairperson Brady stated the CDD was working to get answers from Lennar regarding when 800 
the pumps were installed, and the irrigation being pulled from the well. She noted someone 801 
was seen working on the wells, but she did not know who it was. We are trying to get to the 802 
end with Lennar and the plat and who owns what. I'm really hoping Clay calls this afternoon 803 
and the meeting went well, and the plat was done.  804 
 805 
Mr. _____: The well on 13 was out last year for 6 months. Lennar finally agreed to fix the well. 806 
They went with a company who wasn’t who they normally go with, and the pump went out 807 
again. There was an underground short that shocked the guys when they were putting in the 808 
well. They came out, pulled the well out which was busted because of the short, and they said 809 
they would not come back and work on that because the short was still there. I was told FPL 810 
came out, put a new transformer in there. I saw FPL a couple of nights last week working on 811 
the transformer. The pump is warrantied. They are waiting for the pump to come in, and we 812 
have another company who will take care of the pump that they are giving us at no cost, 813 
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putting it back in. That well feeds the pond on 15. The pond on 15 feeds the pond on 1, and 814 
the pond on 1 feeds the driving range which feeds the pumphouse which feeds the entire 815 
community, golf course, and all homes. So, the irrigation all comes out through the 816 
pumphouse, but it is for the community and the golf course, not just the golf course. That is a 817 
major well. That well pumps an unbelievable number of gallons of water per minute. That’s 818 
why the pond on 15 is down right now unfortunately. I noticed yesterday that it had come back 819 
up a little bit, but that pump is still not fixed. I asked about that yesterday.  820 
 821 
Discussion ensued regarding the well; everyone working together to make sure the well was 822 
in working order; the plat indicating who owned what, including the wells and the lakes.  823 
 824 
Chairperson Brady: Speed limit signs, we are working on that. I know we need more. As I am 825 
working with the County to get our golf course community designation with signs, they are 826 
also giving me recommendations regarding where we should put the speed limit signs. 827 
Bushes and lights, we will make sure that as we do the new landscaping contract the lighting is 828 
made visible. The lighting at the front entrance is an absolute disaster. It was from 20 years 829 
ago. So, we are going to have to actually redo the entire electrical system coming in and part 830 
of that will be making sure all of that is done correctly. We are getting quotes to redo all of that 831 
electric. Me personally, I would like to have those wrapped lights on all year round. I think that 832 
makes it look very nice coming in. They are white, not Christmasy colors. Yes, they are 833 
Christmas lights, but I personally think they look good.  834 
 835 
Mr. Hamilton said one of the residents indicated he really loved the lights and commented it 836 
made it feel like a true community. He stated he personally liked the white lights. He felt they 837 
were not Christmasy lights, but made it feel like a 5 star resort.  838 
 839 
Ms. Blakely stated she worried there would be maintenance issues leaving the lights up year 840 
round and that it took away from the holidays. 841 
 842 
Chairperson Brady noted there would be other decorations going up for the holidays.  843 
 844 
Ms. Blakely agreed she did not like the idea of leaving the white Christmas lights up year 845 
round; however, she would like to see more uplighting.  846 
 847 
Ms. DeLuca agreed the Christmas lights should not be up year round but leaving them up 848 
from November to March would be nice to better illuminate the area during daylight savings 849 
when it gets dark so much earlier. She said it was important to put more lighting at the back 850 
entrance as well. She noted leaving the lights on from November to March would also help 851 
with security.  852 
 853 
Mr. _____ noted all the uplighting fixtures were replaced last year. He said unfortunately the 854 
lights were pointed at the bushes which were overgrown. He suggested leaving the white 855 
Christmas lights up until the uplighting was corrected and then make a decision regarding 856 
whether the Christmas lights should remain.  857 
 858 
Chairperson Brady agreed. She discussed the electrical problems at the front entrance. She 859 
indicated estimates to fix the system were being obtained.  860 
 861 
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Ms. Blakely asked about solar lighting. 862 
 863 
Mr. Ward: You don’t actually have any real lights at the front entrance. At that entrance if I was 864 
going to put in a real streetlight I would put in a solar light because it's relatively dependable 865 
and they are not too expensive. I am doing a community in Pasco County now and I think the 866 
lights are running $1,500 dollars installed each for an 18 foot pole.  867 
 868 
Ms. Blakely asked about the up lights for the islands and roundabouts and such.  869 
 870 
Mr. Ward responded there were smaller solar systems which the CDD could consider.  871 
 872 
Mr. Hamilton noted solar lighting was not yet sustainable, which was why it was not widely 873 
utilized.  874 
 875 
Mr. Ward agreed. 876 
 877 
Chairperson Brady: Internet service, right now it is just Comcast. I don’t think there is any other 878 
internet service. I believe the HOA is meeting with a company that would bring fiber in to see 879 
what it would cost to run fiber and then what it would be for everybody. The HOA would do 880 
that and then it would just be part of the Master HOA fees. They would need approval from 881 
the CDD as the owner of the roads to do it, but that would be a very good question to ask the 882 
HOA. 883 
 884 
Mr. Troy Martin: Okay, well it could be a community wide contract with Comcast versus 885 
everyone on their own.  886 
 887 
Chairperson Brady: Correct. But the CDD would not do a contract with a company and then 888 
bill everybody, but if the HOA wants to it can. Once the map is done, we will have it for 889 
everyone to see. We did budget around $400,000 dollars in our budget for landscaping, and I 890 
don’t know how much the HOA has in their budget. We have that and we have money in 891 
reserves, so we should be good with that. The last one I have is the water management flow 892 
and how is it monitored. They do sampling, and also the County comes in and samples the 893 
creek. They actually sampled 16 of our ponds the last time they were out and the creeks going 894 
into the preserve. They sampled at the bridge between the first set of verandahs and terraces. 895 
They have found the last couple of years a high nitrate in the winter, and they are trying to 896 
figure out why, so they are coming and sampling every month to see where it is coming from 897 
because it's not at Burnt Store Road; it is something in here. Not sure whether it is the original 898 
old well or something we are using in our fertilizer, but they will be back out in two weeks to 899 
do more samples.  900 
 901 
Mr. _____ asked about the outflow from the water management system. 902 
 903 
Chairperson Brady explained most of the time the water did not leave the community as it 904 
was used for irrigation; only during the wet season would it sometimes flow out of the 905 
community.  906 
 907 
Mr. _____ asked how the water flowed out of the community. 908 
 909 
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Chairperson Brady discussed the locations from which the water could flow out of the 910 
community, lake 11, the lake behind 11, and through the creek; lake 17 and 10 flowed into 911 
the creek and went out under the bridge, and the water flowed out from the lake behind 912 
Verandah 14.  913 
 914 
Mr. _____ asked for this to be marked on the map. 915 
 916 
Chairperson Brady indicated the map would be marked with the water outflow areas.  917 
 918 
Mr. Dan Forte asked about the 11th hole pond. 919 
 920 
Chairperson Brady responded the 11th hole pond had a small littoral shelf which was just 921 
planted. She said she would look at the pond and check the plantings.  922 
 923 
Discussion ensued regarding the kayak pond leading out to the harbor; needing to change 924 
the signage at the back gate to read owner entrance, not resident entrance as renters would 925 
need to enter at the front gate; an old yield sign which needed replacement; difficulty with 926 
speeders in the community; cutting back the foliage along the kayak trail again; the kayak 927 
trail having mangroves and only being able to cut foliage back so far as mangroves were 928 
protected; and how much it would cost to maintain the kayak trail.  929 
 930 
Mr. Ward: We have changed a lot in the last four months in terms of what we are doing, and 931 
the cost of all of this. I am going to true up this budget with you, but I am not going to do it for 932 
another 60 days because I need to see where we are going to be. We will just have to go from 933 
there. The budget numbers were very high level numbers four or five months ago. We need to 934 
get through the bidding process with the landscaping. We need to get through what’s going 935 
to happen with the wells. We need to get through just a couple more items before I can true 936 
up the budget for you.  937 
 938 
Discussion ensued regarding the landscaping contract; ensuring the trees were well trimmed 939 
up to 7 feet along the sidewalks; ensuring the bushes were trimmed a foot back from the 940 
sidewalks and streets; ensuring the ponds had the proper and necessary littorals. 941 
 942 
Chairperson Brady noted she regularly notified Jim Ward about resident complaints or 943 
anything which needed attention in the community, as well as social media posts.  944 
 945 
Discussion ensued regarding the Heritage Landing Facebook pages and other social media; 946 
potentially using social media to distribute information to the community; and monitoring 947 
social media for complaints or questions. 948 
 949 
Chairperson Brady stated it was not fair to expect someone to monitor social media for 950 
questions or concerns. She said she would continue to direct residents to contact Mr. Ward 951 
with questions. She noted she was going to remove herself from the Heritage Landing 952 
Facebook group because people could be mean. She stated the CDD was a government 953 
agency and could not have a social media page in the same way the HOA could.  954 
 955 
Discussion continued regarding the Heritage Landing Facebook page and other community 956 
social media outlets; the problems with community Facebook pages and social media 957 
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outlets; the HOA having an app for the residents to use to report concerns and get in touch; 958 
and asking Mary to send out a summary of what was discussed at today’s meeting to the 959 
community.  960 
 961 
Mr. Robert Brady asked about the littoral plantings in the ponds and the pond maintenance 962 
program.  963 
 964 
Mr. Ward: We started this program a few months ago. It was in really bad shape. We focused 965 
on chemical application of the lake system to try to get a lot of the growth under control and 966 
taking out the cattails. Step 2 of the process is once we get this piece under control we usual 967 
will start a littoral planting process based on looking at the engineer maps to see where the 968 
littoral shelves are and put the littoral shelves back in which we knew were gone. Honestly, we 969 
didn’t think it was going to cause such a stir, but it did. So, we are putting those back in. The 970 
next step of the process is, maybe in three or four months, we start to look at additional 971 
methods of treatment which are aeration devices. Either bubblers, or fountains, or additional 972 
fish, things that help the ecosystem itself. It is a multistep process we will go through. It is 973 
something that will take time because we don’t know where the system will be in two or three 974 
or four months. Once we see it changing, we will make more changes to the system to help it 975 
over time. We did not install the littoral materials for all of the littoral shelves, so we anticipate 976 
doing more littoral plantings, but I want to see where we get with the ones which have already 977 
been planted. They don’t always grow at a 100% growth rate, so I want to see where we get 978 
and then once rainy season starts we will have a better handle on where we are with the 979 
existing system and we will be able to make better decisions on additional littorals, if any are 980 
needed at all. The materials which were planted only grow to be 24 to 36 inches tall, so they 981 
will stay low. The problem you have had is your system has grown cattails which grow to be 6 982 
to 8 feet tall or taller, and they really take over the system. We have taken those out and 983 
replaced them with plants which were better for the water management system and would not 984 
grow up to 8 feet tall. If you think about it, these plants were on a littoral shelf, inside the lake 985 
bank or below the lake bank, the plants were 24 to 36 inches. They were not going to get 986 
much taller than the top of the lake bank itself, and they are going to look like the materials 987 
you see here. These are perfect pictures, and the plants will not be perfect like in the picture, 988 
but we will add more littorals as time goes on, as needed, but I can’t tell you when that is 989 
going to be or how much it is going to be.  990 
 991 
Mr. Brady said he was worried about the vegetation taking over ponds completely. He stated 992 
he was worried about the plants spreading throughout the pond, not necessarily growing tall. 993 
 994 
Mr. Ward: I think some of the difficulties are what was a pond really isn’t a pond; it is a littoral 995 
shelf which just had water in it because the littoral shelves were gone. They are just not there, 996 
so we put them back in the system, and I understand some have made the comment that we 997 
screwed up the lakes, for lack of a better term, because the water is gone, but at the end of the 998 
day it was a littoral shelf to begin with. Not a great littoral shelf, and that’s got to be fixed, but 999 
what we put in was not a lake that took a littoral shelf, it was a littoral shelf that was there that 1000 
we just replanted.  1001 
 1002 
Chairperson Brady: I’ll use 12 for an example. The first 100 feet from the tee box is all a littoral 1003 
shelf, the width of what is the lake and then the lake gets deeper when it drops, and where it 1004 
drops, that’s where the plants won't grow because it's too deep. One thing I'm going to do, 1005 
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I'm going to wait until more people are here, and probably in January I will have the County 1006 
Water Quality Manager come in and do a presentation on water quality, why you want the 1007 
shelves, the differences between the lake banks and the lakes themselves, the SWFMD 1008 
permitting requirements, water flow, etc. At the same time, I will have the natural resources 1009 
manager come in and do a little thing about wildlife, whether it be gators, hogs, everything we 1010 
have around here.  1011 
 1012 
Ms. _____: So, we should blame Lennar for selling us a pond which was really a littoral shelf.  1013 
 1014 
Chairperson Brady: Correct. 1015 
 1016 
Ms. DeLuca: Can we have a meeting before we do phase 3? Can we put it on the agenda and 1017 
have an open discussion with us and the residents before because the amount of ponds that 1018 
we put an aerator in now that you put these littorals in is almost zero. Second of all, we should 1019 
educate them on the palm rats while we are at it because the sable palms that have fruit attract 1020 
palm rats. The palms need to be kept properly trimmed to discourage rats from making a 1021 
home in them.  1022 
 1023 
Chairperson Brady: What we planted has not changed what ponds can get aerators or not 1024 
because all we did was plant in the lakes. We did not change the depth or create a new layer 1025 
in the pond. We planted what’s required to be in the ponds. In the deep part of 12 where it 1026 
becomes a lake, you could still put an aerator or a fountain in there. 1027 
 1028 
Ms. DeLuca: But the dead plants could get in there and cause a problem with the aerator. I 1029 
had a pond with littorals, and the debris comes off them and goes into the aerators.  1030 
 1031 
Chairperson Brady: There are many things we can do to prevent that from happening.  1032 
 1033 
Ms. DeLuca: I just want to make sure we have a balanced discussion because lake 11 is 1034 
supposedly completely filled with plants now. Well, 11 looked like a beautiful place to put an 1035 
aerator before, now, probably not.  1036 
 1037 
Chairperson Brady: I don’t think there is a single lake that we have that we could not put an 1038 
aerator in. 1039 
 1040 
Mr. Mike Parker: You talked about the cattails. Did you treat the pond on the (indecipherable)? 1041 
 1042 
Chairperson Brady: That is actually the preserves and no we did not treat that area.  1043 
 1044 
Discussion ensued regarding the palm rats and what plants attracted the rats; trimming back 1045 
the plants which attracted the rats; and educating the public about the rats.  1046 
 1047 
 1048 
SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Adjournment 1049 

 1050 
Ms. Brady adjourned the meeting at approximately 12:53 p.m.  1051 

 1052 
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On MOTION made by Robert Brady, seconded by Vickey 1053 
DeLuca, and with all in favor, the meeting was adjourned. 1054 

 1055 
 1056 

Tern Bay Community Development District 1057 
 1058 
 1059 
 1060 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 1061 
James P. Ward, Secretary   Tara Brady, Chairperson 1062 
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RESOLUTION 2026-2 

 
THE RESOLUTION OF THE TERN BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT (THE “DISTRICT”) AMENDING AND RESTATING THE FISCAL YEAR 
2025 BUDGET WHICH BEGAN ON OCTOBER 1, 2024, AND ENDED ON 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2025; AMENDING RESOLUTION 2025-8 RELATED TO THE 
ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2026 BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2025 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 
2026: PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  
 

WHEREAS, the District previously adopted the Fiscal Year 2025 Budget on June 6, 
2024; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District desires to amend and restate the adopted Fiscal Year 2025 

Budget to conform to actual expenditures in accordance with “Exhibit A” attached hereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District previously adopted the Fiscal Year 2026 budget on June 6, 

2025; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District desires to amend and restate Section 3(b) of Resolution 2025-8 

to the following: 
 
“The District Manager or Treasurer may approve an expenditure that would increase or 

decrease a line-item appropriation for expenditures within a fund as long as the total 
appropriations of the funds are not exceeded, or such expenditure is authorized by separate 
disbursement or spending resolution of the Board of Supervisors.”   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
TERN BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 
 
 SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. That the foregoing recitals are true 
and correct and incorporated herein as if written into this Section. 
 
 SECTION 2. AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT OF FISCAL YEAR 2025 BUDGET. 
The previously adopted Budget of the District is hereby amended to conform to actual 
expenditures in accordance with Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein as if 
written into this Section. 
 
 SECTION 3.  AMENDMENT TO RESOLUTION 2025-8.  The previously adopted 
Resolution 2025-8, Section 3 (b) is hereby amended to read: 
  
 “The District Manager or Treasurer may approve an expenditure that would increase or 
decrease a line-item appropriation for expenditures within a fund as long as the total 
appropriations of the funds are not exceeded, or such expenditure is authorized by separate 
disbursement or spending resolution of the Board of Supervisors.” 
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SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Resolution, or any part thereof. 
 
 SECTION 5. CONFLICT. That all Sections or parts of Sections of any Resolutions, 

Agreements, or actions of the Board of Supervisors in conflict are hereby repealed to the extent 
of such conflict. 
 
 SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall take effect upon the passage 
and adoption of this Resolution by the Board of Supervisors of the Tern Bay Community 
Development District. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the Tern Bay Community 
Development District, Charlotte County, Florida, this 2nd day of December 2025. 
 
 
ATTEST:      TERN BAY  
       COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
             
James P. Ward, Secretary    Tara Brady, Chairperson  
 
 
 
Exhibit A: Amended and Restated Adoption FY2025 Budget 
Exhibit B: Fiscal Year 2026 Adopted Budget – Amendment #1 



Description
  Fiscal Year 

2025  Budget 
 Amendment 

#1 

 FY2025 
Amended  

Budget 
 Description 

Revenues and Other Sources
Carryforward - Reserve Distributions
Extraordinary Capital/Operations Reserve -$  137,907$         137,907$         Cash needed to fund current operations

Interest Income - General Account -$  6,578$              6,578$              Interest on GF investment account
Special Assessment Revenue

Special Assessment - On-Roll 572,192$         15,465$           587,658$         Assessments from Property Owners
Special Assessment - Off-Roll -$  Assessments biled directly to Property Owners

Miscellaneout Revenue -$  25,000$           25,000$           
Total Revenue & Other Sources 572,192$         184,950$         757,143$         Total Revenue

Appropriations and Other Uses
Legislative

Board of Supervisor's Fees 1,600$              6,000$              7,600$              Statutory Required Fees (Waived by Lennar Members)
Executive

Professional - Management 47,250$           -$  47,250$           District Manager
Financial and Administrative

Audit Services 6,500$              -$  6,500$              Statutory Required Yearly Audit
Accounting Services 27,000$           -$  27,000$           Accountinng (All Funds)
Assessment Roll Services 27,000$           -$  27,000$           Preparation/Maintenance (All Fund)

 $             1,000  $ - 1,000$              
IRS Required Calculation to insure interest on bond funds does not
exceed interes paid on bonds

Other Contractual Services
Legal Advertising 2,500$              570$                 3,070$              Statutory Required Legal Advertising
Trustee Services 8,340$              (4,094)$            4,246$              Trustee Fees for Bonds
Dissemination Agent Services 7,000$              (2,400)$            4,600$              Required SEC Reporting for Bond Issues
Property Appraiser/Tax Collector Fees 50$  4$  54$  Fees to place assessments on tax bills
Bank Service Fees 250$                 (200)$                50$  Bank Fees - Governmental Accounts

Communications and Freight Services
Postage, Freight & Messenger 150$                 773$                 923$                 Agenda Mailings and other Misc. Mailings 

Insurance 34,799$           743$                 35,542$           General Liability and D&O Liability Insurance
Meeting Room Rental 475$                 (475)$                -$  Board Meeting Room Rental
Printing and Binding 50$  4,739$              4,789$              Agenda Books and Copies 

Tern Bay Community Development District
General Fund - Budget - Amendment #1

Fiscal Year 2025

 Arbitrage Rebate Fees 

Prepared by:
JPWARD and Associates, LLC 1
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Description
  Fiscal Year 

2025  Budget 
 Amendment 

#1 

 FY2025 
Amended  

Budget 
 Description 

Tern Bay Community Development District
General Fund - Budget - Amendment #1

Fiscal Year 2025

Web Site Maintenance 2,000$              (700)$                1,300$              Statutory Required Maintenance of District Web Sites
Office Supplies -$                      -$                      
Subscriptions and Memberships 175$                 -$                      175$                 Department of Economic Opportunity
Legal Services  

General Counsel 5,000$              19,012$           24,012$           District Attorney
Bond Counsel -$                      4,353$              4,353$              Specific Authorized Tasks

Other General Government Services  
Engineering Services - General 10,000$           24,358$           34,358$           District Engineer

 Sub-Total: 181,139$         52,684$           233,823$         

Other Public Safety
Professional Services
   Guard House  Services  

Access Control - Gate Attendant (Ramco) -$                      36,024$           36,024$           Services though 1/7/26
Access Control - System (Ramco) -$                      13,464$           13,464$           Services though 1/7/26
Access Control - Roving Patrol -$                      5,406$              5,406$              

Repairs and Maintenance  
Front and Back Gates -$                      2,444$              2,444$              
Contingencies -$                      

 Sub-Total: -$                      57,337$           57,337$           

Stormwater Management Services
Lake, Lake Bank and Littoral Shelf Maintenance

Repairs & Maintenance
Aquatic Weed Control -$                      22,000$           22,000$           Periodic Maintenance of Water Management System
Lake Vegetation Removal -$                      22,500$           22,500$            
Control Structures, Catch basins & Outfalls -$                      169,300$         169,300$         Rotating Program to clean Silt from Drainage Structures

Preserve Area Maintenance
Repairs and Maintenance

Wetland Maintenance -$                      7,200$              7,200$              Quarterly Preserve Maintenance 
Preserve Path Maintenance -$                      8,000$              8,000$              Path to Canoe Launch
Wild Hog Removal -$                      49,000$           49,000$           On-going program for removal of wild hogs.

Prepared by:
JPWARD and Associates, LLC 2



Description
  Fiscal Year 

2025  Budget 
 Amendment 

#1 

 FY2025 
Amended  

Budget 
 Description 

Tern Bay Community Development District
General Fund - Budget - Amendment #1

Fiscal Year 2025

Cane Toad Removal -$                      5,630$              5,630$               
Sub-Total: -$                      283,630$         283,630$         

Road & Street Facilities  
Street Lights  

Utility Services
Electric Service - Lease Charges 6,000$              (1,190)$            4,810$              FP&L - Electric Service for Rental of Street Lights
Electric Service - Use Charges 95,000$           4,593$              99,593$           FP&L - Electric Service for Rental of Street Lights

Repairs and Maintenance
-$                      11,400$           11,400$           
-$                      2,396$              2,396$              

Miscellaneous Repairs -$                      225$                 225$                 
Contingencies -$                      14,459$           14,459$           

Sub-Total: 101,000$         31,883$           132,883$         
Landscaping Services

Repairs & Maintenance
Tree Trimming -$                      4,699$              4,699$              
Landscape Lighting -$                      4,718$              4,718$               
Contingencies & CEI -$                      -$                      -$                      

Sub-Total: -$                      9,417$             9,417$             
.

Reserves

Extraordinary Capital/Operations 250,000$         (250,000)$        -$                      

Long Term Capital Planning Tool - create a stable/equitable funding 
plan to offset deterioration resulting in sufficient funds for major 
common area expenditures and to create a stable fund for 
Hurricane Cleanup/Restoration.

Other Fees and Charges

Discounts and Tax Collector Fees 40,053$           -$                      40,053$           
Discount is 4% for November payment, plus TC/PA charge of 3% for 
fees to include assessment on Tax Bills

Total Appropriations 572,192$         184,950$         757,143$         Total Expenditures

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Fund  Balance  $                      -  $                   (0)  $                   (0) Cash Over (Short) at Fiscal Year End

 Street Sweeping 
Annual Holiday Decorations

Prepared by:
JPWARD and Associates, LLC 3



Description
  Fiscal Year 

2025  Budget 
 Amendment 

#1 

 FY2025 
Amended  

Budget 
 Description 

Tern Bay Community Development District
General Fund - Budget - Amendment #1

Fiscal Year 2025

Beginning Fund Balance: 1,363,553$     1,363,553$     
Additions to Extraordinary Capital/Operations Reserve  $         250,000  $       (250,000)  $                      - 

Distributions from Extraodinary Capital/Operations Reserve  $                      -  $       (137,907)  $       (137,907)

Fund Balance 1,613,553 (387,907) 1,225,646

Fund Balance - Use of Funds
Extraordinary Capital/Operations 1,543,745 (482,146) 1,061,598 Long Term Capital Planning Balance 

1st Three (3) Months Operations 69,808 94,239 164,048 Required to meet Cash Needs until Assessments Rec'd
Total Fund Balance 1,613,553$     (387,907)$       1,225,646$     

Description Units
Rate                        

FY 2025
Executive Homes ( 40' - 50') 232 377.44$           377.44$           
Manor Homes (51' - 60') 231 377.44$           377.44$           
Estate homes ( 61' - 70') 102 377.44$           377.44$           
Coach Homes 176 377.44$           377.44$           
Multi-Family (6 Plex) 108 377.44$           377.44$           
Veranda (12 Unit Plex) 320 377.44$           377.44$           
Terrace (30 Unit plex) 330 377.44$           377.44$           
Commercial/Office 17 377.44$           377.44$           

Total Units: 1516

Cap Rate - Adopted FY 2021 623.70$           

Prepared by:
JPWARD and Associates, LLC 4
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FISCAL YEAR 2026 

PREPARED BY: 

JPWARD & ASSOCIATES, LLC, 2301 NORTHEAST 37 STREET, FT. LAUDERDALE, FL. 33308 

T: 954-658-4900  E: JimWard@JPWardAssociates.com 

Exhibit B



Description
 Adopted Fiscal 

Year 2026  Budget  Amendment #1 
  Fiscal Year 2026  

Budget 
 Description 

Revenues and Other Sources
Carryforward - Reserves -$  
GF Reserve Distribution 445,800$              233,099$          678,899$               Additional Cash Required to fund Operations

Interest Income - General Account -$  30,000$            30,000$  Interest on Cash Balances - General Fund Account
Special Assessment Revenue

Special Assessment - On-Roll 1,249,598$           -$  1,249,598$            Assessments from Property Owners
Special Assessment - Off-Roll -$  -$  Assessments billed directly to Property Owners

Total Revenue & Other Sources 1,695,398$           263,099$          1,958,497$            

Appropriations and Other Uses
Legislative

Board of Supervisor's Fees 12,000$                -$  12,000$  Statutory Required Fees 
Executive

Professional - Management 50,000$                -$  50,000$  District Manager
Financial and Administrative

Audit Services 6,600$  -$  6,600$  Statutory Required Yearly Audit
Accounting Services 27,300$                -$  27,300$  Accounting (All Funds)
Assessment Roll Services 27,300$                -$  27,300$  Preparation/Maintenance (All Fund)

 $ 1,000  $ - 1,000$  
     

interest  paid on bonds
Other Contractual Services

Legal Advertising 1,500$  -$  1,500$  Statutory Required Legal Advertising
Trustee Services 8,009$  -$  8,009$  Trustee Fees for Bonds
Dissemination Agent Services 6,000$  -$  6,000$  Required SEC Reporting for Bond Issues
Bond Amortization Schedules -$  500$  500$  Fees to reamortize bond payable
Property Appraiser/Tax Collector Fees 50$  -$  50$  Fees to place assessments on tax bills
Bank Service Fees 250$  -$  250$  Bank Fees - Governmental Accounts

Communications and Freight Services
Postage, Freight & Messenger 150$  750$  900$  Agenda Mailings and other Misc. Mailings 
Web Site Maintenance 2,400$  2,400$  Statutory Required Maintenance of District Web Sites

Insurance 36,242$                4,000$               40,242$  General Liability and D&O Liability Insurance
Meeting Room Rental 250$  -$  250$  Board Meeting Room Rental
Printing and Binding 300$  -$  300$  Agenda Books and Copies 
Subscriptions and Memberships 175$  -$  175$  Department of Economic Opportunity

Tern Bay Community Development District
General Fund - Budget - Amendment #1

Fiscal Year 2026

 Arbitrage Rebate Fees 

Prepared by:
JPWARD and Associates, LLC 1



Description
 Adopted Fiscal 

Year 2026  Budget  Amendment #1 
  Fiscal Year 2026  

Budget 
 Description 

Tern Bay Community Development District
General Fund - Budget - Amendment #1

Fiscal Year 2026

Legal Services
General Counsel 6,500$                   -$                       6,500$                    District Attorney

Other General Government Services
Engineering Services - General

General Services 15,000$                -$                       15,000$                  District Engineer
Canoe Path Improvement (Permit Analysis) 2,500$                   -$                       2,500$                    Review of Requirements for improvements to Path

Sub-Total: 203,526$              5,250$              208,776$               

Other Public Safety
Professional Services
Guard House  Services 425,000$              (425,000)$         -$                            

Access Control - Gate Attendant (Ramco) -$                           72,522$            72,522$                  Services though 1/7/26
Access Control - System (Ramco) -$                           2,359$               2,359$                    Services though 1/7/26
Access Control - Gate Attendant (Allied) -$                           155,749$          155,749$               Full Time - at Gates 
Access Control - Resident Liaison (Allied) 48,177$            48,177$                  Resident Liaison (40 hrs per week)
Access Control - System - (Entrance IQ) -$                           29,182$            29,182$                  Welcome Gate Technology/Software
Contingencies -$                           -$                       -$                            

Utilities  
Electric 2,400$                   -$                       2,400$                    
Water and Wastewater 2,400$                   (1,200)$             1,200$                    
Internet Access -$                           2,700$               2,700$                    

Repairs and Maintenance  
Access Control  / Janitorial -$                           3,340$               3,340$                    
Front and Back Gates 1,000$                   8,000$               9,000$                    
Misc. Repairs 15,000$                -$                       15,000$                  
Contingencies -$                           -$                       -$                            

Capital Outlay -$                           80,000$            80,000$                  Gate Replacement
Sub-Total: 445,800$              (24,170)$           421,630$               

Prepared by:
JPWARD and Associates, LLC 2



Description
 Adopted Fiscal 

Year 2026  Budget  Amendment #1 
  Fiscal Year 2026  

Budget 
 Description 

Tern Bay Community Development District
General Fund - Budget - Amendment #1

Fiscal Year 2026

Stormwater Management Services
Lake, Lake Bank and Littoral Shelf Maintenance

Professional Services   
Operations Management 10,000$                10,000$            20,000$                  Asset Operations Management
NPDES Monitoring -$                           -$                       -$                            

Utilities
 Electric Fountains/Bubblers 750$                      (750)$                 -$                            No longer needed

Repairs & Maintenance
Aquatic Weed Control 75,000$                (3,000)$             72,000$                  Periodic Maintenance of Water Management System
Lake Vegetation Removal -$                           22,000$            22,000$                   
Littoral Shelf Maintenance -$                           15,000$            15,000$                  
Aerations System (Fountains/Bubblers) 500$                      -$                       500$                       Periodic Maintenance  
Control Structures, Catch basins & Outfalls 75,000$                (35,000)$           40,000$                  Rotating Program to clean Silt from Drainage Structures
Contingencies -$                           -$                            

Preserve Area Maintenance
Professional Services

Operations Management 10,000$                10,000$            20,000$                  Asset Operations Management
Contingencies -$                           -$                       -$                            

Repairs and Maintenance
Wetland Maintenance 10,000$                18,800$            28,800$                  Quarterly Preserve Maintenance 
Preserve Path Maintenance 5,000$                   10,000$            15,000$                  Path to Canoe Launch
Installation - No Trespassing Signs 15,000$                (10,000)$           5,000$                    
Wild Hog Removal 15,000$                19,000$            34,000$                  On-going program for removal of wild hogs.
Cane Toad Removal -$                           38,000$            38,000$                   
Contingencies -$                           -$                       -$                            

Capital Outlay
Aeration Systems/Fountains 15,000$                (15,000)$           -$                            
Littoral Shelf Planting -$                           44,000$            44,000$                  Installed in FY 2026 in Phase I Area Only
Lake Bank Restorations -$                           -$                       -$                            
Contingencies & CEI -$                           -$                       -$                            

Sub-Total: 231,250$              123,050$          354,300$               

Prepared by:
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Description
 Adopted Fiscal 

Year 2026  Budget  Amendment #1 
  Fiscal Year 2026  

Budget 
 Description 

Tern Bay Community Development District
General Fund - Budget - Amendment #1

Fiscal Year 2026

Road and Street Services
Professional Management

Asset Management 15,000$                15,000$            30,000$                  Asset Operations Management
Utility Services

Electric - Street Lights   
  Electric Service - Lease Charges 6,000$                   -$                       6,000$                    FP&L - Electric Service for Rental of Street Lights
  Electric Service - Use Charges 95,000$                5,000$               100,000$                

Repairs and Maintenance
   Sidewalk Repairs 2,500$                   22,500$            25,000$                  

Bridge Repairs 5,000$                   7,000$               12,000$                  
Striping & Pavement Marking -$                           15,000$            15,000$                  

15,000$                -$                       15,000$                  Additional Lighting at Entrances
5,000$                   30,000$            35,000$                  

12,000$                2,500$               14,500$                  
   Pressure Washing - Streets -$                           33,000$            33,000$                  New LINE ITEM

Miscellaneous Repairs 10,000$                -$                       10,000$                  
Contingencies -$                           -$                            

Sub-Total: 165,500$              130,000$          295,500$               

Landscaping Services
Professional Management

Asset Management 25,000$                25,000$                  
Repairs & Maintenance

Landscaping Maintenance - Common Area 300,000$              20,819$            320,819$               
Tree Trimming -$                           70,000$            70,000$                  
Landscape Replacements -$                           25,000$            25,000$                   
Mulch Installation -$                           50,000$            50,000$                   
Annuals -$                           35,000$            35,000$                  
Landscape Lighting -$                           25,000$            25,000$                   

Irrigation System  
Pump & Wells
   Routine Maintenance -$                           10,000$            10,000$                  
   Well Testing/Meter Reading -$                           20,000$            20,000$                  
Line Distribution System   
   Routine Maintenance -$                           10,000$            10,000$                  

Contingencies & CEI -$                           -$                       -$                            
Sub-Total: 325,000$              265,819$          590,819$               

 Street Lights/Directional Signs 
 Street Sweeping 
Annual Holiday Decorations

Prepared by:
JPWARD and Associates, LLC 4



Description
 Adopted Fiscal 

Year 2026  Budget  Amendment #1 
  Fiscal Year 2026  

Budget 
 Description 

Tern Bay Community Development District
General Fund - Budget - Amendment #1

Fiscal Year 2026

Reserves

Extraordinary Capital/Operations 236,850$              (236,850)$         -$                            

Long Term Capital Planning Tool - create a stable/equitable funding plan to 
offset deterioration resulting in sufficient funds for major common area 
expenditures and to create a stable fund for Hurricane 
Cleanup/Restoration.

Other Fees and Charges

Discounts and Tax Collector Fees 87,472$                87,472$                  
Discount is 4% for November payment, plus TC/PA charge of 3% for fees to 
include assessment on Tax Bills

Total Appropriations 1,695,398$           263,099$          1,958,496$            Total Expenditures

Fund Balances:
Change from Current Year Operations  $                           -  $                       -  $                           0 Cash Over (Short) at Fiscal Year End

Fund Balance - Beginning  $              841,728  $               841,728 
Reserve Additions 236,850$              (236,850)$         -$                            Budgeted Funds for Long Term Capital Planning
Reserve Expenditures (445,800)$             (233,099)$         (678,899)$              Reserve Funds Used in Current FY
Total Fund Balance 395,928$               162,830$               

Fund Balance - Uses of Funds
Extraordinary Capital/Operations Reserve 85,105$                (206,975)$              Long Term Capital Planning Reserve - Balance of Funds
1st -  2.2 Months Operations 310,823$              369,805$               Required to meet Cash Needs until Assessments Rec'd
Total Fund Balance 395,928$              162,830$               

Description
Rate                        

FY 2026
Rate                        

FY 2026
Executive Homes ( 40' - 50') 800.00$                800.00$                  
Manor Homes (51' - 60') 800.00$                800.00$                  
Estate homes ( 61' - 70') 800.00$                800.00$                  
Coach Homes 800.00$                800.00$                                                      
Veranda (12 Unit Plex) 800.00$                800.00$                  
Terrace (30 Unit plex) 800.00$                800.00$                  
Commercial/Office 800.00$                800.00$                  

Total Units:

PROPOSED Cap Rate - FY 2026 960.00$                960.00$                 

Prepared by:
JPWARD and Associates, LLC 5



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2026-3 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF TERN 
BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT TO DESIGNATE 
DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND 
AUTHORIZATION TO PUBLISH NOTICE OF SUCH HEARING 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF ADOPTING RULES OF PROCEDURE; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Tern Bay Community Development District (the “District”) is a community 

development district that was established by the Board of the Florida Land and Water 
Adjudicatory Commission in Charlotte County, Florida Chapter 42VV-1; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Tern Bay Community Development District (the 
“Board”) is authorized by Section 190.011(5), Florida Statutes, to adopt rules and orders 
pursuant to Chapter 120, Florida Statutes. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF TERN 

BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 
 
SECTION 1.  FINDINGS.  The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated 

herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2.  PUBLIC HEARING.  A Public Hearing will be held to adopt the District’s 
Rules Relating to Procedure on February 3, 2026, at 10:00 a.m., at the Heritage Landing 
Amenity Center, 14571 Heritage Landing Blvd., Punta Gorda, Florida 33955. 

 
SECTION 3. NOTICE.  The District Secretary is directed to publish notice of the 

hearing in accordance with Section 120.54, Florida Statutes. 
 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 
its adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Tern Bay 

Community Development District, Charlotte County, Florida, this 2nd day of December 2025. 
 

 
   TERN BAY COMMUNITY 
ATTEST:  DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
   

 
 

             
James P. Ward, Secretary   Tara Brady, Chairperson 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2026-4 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF TERN 
BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT TO DESIGNATE 
DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND 
AUTHORIZATION TO PUBLISH NOTICE OF SUCH HEARING 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF ADOPTING RULES OF PROCEDURE 
RELATING TO VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEE; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Tern Bay Community Development District (the “District”) is a community 

development district that was established by the Board of the Florida Land and Water 
Adjudicatory Commission in Charlotte County, Florida Chapter 42VV-1; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Tern Bay Community Development District (the 
“Board”) is authorized by Section 190.011(5), Florida Statutes, to adopt rules and orders 
pursuant to Chapter 120, Florida Statutes. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF TERN 

BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 
 
SECTION 1.  FINDINGS.  The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated 

herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2.  PUBLIC HEARING.  A Public Hearing will be held to adopt the District’s 
Rules of Procedure relating to Vehicle Registration on February 3, 2026, at 10:00 a.m., at the 
Heritage Landing Amenity Center, 14571 Heritage Landing Blvd., Punta Gorda, Florida 33955. 

 
SECTION 3. NOTICE.  The District Secretary is directed to publish notice of the 

hearing in accordance with Section 120.54, Florida Statutes. 
 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 
its adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Tern Bay 

Community Development District, Charlotte County, Florida, this 2nd day of December 2025. 
 

 
   TERN BAY COMMUNITY 
ATTEST: DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
   

 
 

             
James P. Ward, Secretary   Tara Brady, Chairperson 
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To: Board of Supervisors 
From: James P. Ward 
Date: October 15, 2025 
Re: Commission on Ethics required Annual Ethics Training 

 
Ethics Training Requirements: 

 
Pursuant to Section 112.3142, Florida Statutes, all Supervisors of a community development district 
organized and existing under the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, 
Florida Statutes, are required to complete four (4) hours of ethics training each calendar year. The four (4) 
hours of Ethics Training shall be allocated amongst the following categories:  
 

• two (2) hours of ethics law,  
• one (1) hour of Sunshine Law; and  
• one (1) hour of Public Records law 
 

Supervisors will report their 2025 training when they fill out their Form 1 (Statements of Financial Interests) 
for the year 2026 by checking a box confirming that they have completed the annual Ethics Training.  
 
Please note that the four (4) hours of the Ethics Training do not have to be completed all at once. ETHICS 
TRAINING IS REQUIRED TO BE COMPLETED BY DECEMBER 31, 2025 FOR THE FORM 1 THAT IS FILED IN 
2026. 
 
It is highly recommended that you keep a record of all ethics training used to satisfy the Ethics Training 
requirements. At present, there is no need to submit a certificate or letter of completion of the Ethics 
Training. However, the Florida Commission on Ethics (“COE”) advises that Supervisors maintain a record in 
the event they are asked to provide proof of completion of all Ethics Training.  
 
Additionally, you may be solicited by a private organization (Florida Association of Special Districts) – to 
take their Ethics Training Course on their platform for which there is a fee. You are NOT required to use 
their services nor pay the fees they charge.   There are several free online resources and links to 
resources that Supervisors might find helpful, including free training for the two (2) hour ethics portion and 
links to outside training(s) which can be used to satisfy the other categories of the Ethics Training. You may 
take training from any source you choose. 

1. General Resource: Florida Commission on Ethics – Training – Ethics (state.fl.us) 

2. Free Training Programs: 

 
 
 

TERN BAY 
Community Development District 

 
 
 
District Manager: James P. Ward 
2301 NE 37 Street 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308 
954.658.4900 
 

https://ethics.state.fl.us/Training/Training.aspx
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Ethics law – The COE provides several free training videos (audio/visual or audio only) covering 
specific ethics law topics. Please note that two (hours” in the category of ethics law are required 
annually. Pursuant to CEO 13-15, “hours” may be measured in fifty (50) minute increments so you 
should ensure you satisfactorily complete sufficient programs to satisfy the two-hour ethics 
requirement if choosing a combination of training videos listed below. 

a. State Ethics Laws for Constitutional Officers & Elected Municipal Officers: 
Note: Google Chrome web browser will not open – use another web browser. 
Video Tutorial   

 
b. Office of the Attorney General offers training on Sunshine Law and Public Records Law 

(22-page presentation – no audio): 
23-page presentation – no audio  

 
c. Office of the Attorney General 2-hour Audio-only Presentation regarding Public Meetings 

and Public Records Law: 
Audio presentation – no video 

d. Ethics law, Sunshine law, and Public Records law – The Florida League of Cities offers a free 
four-hour online course which satisfies the annual requirement to attend two hours of ethics 
law, one hour of Sunshine law, and one hour of Public Records law. The course is available 
online 24/7 and may be paused and resumed at your convenience. Registration is required for 
this class; however, there is no registration fee. 
FLC Mandated Ethics Workshop 
 

3. Other Training Programs 

a. Florida State University’s Florida Institute of Government offers a “4-Hour Ethics 
Course” which satisfies the annual requirement to attend two hours of ethics law, one hour 
of Sunshine law, and one hour of Public Records law. The course is available online 24/7 
and may be paused and resumed at your convenience. The registration fee is $79.00. 

• 4-Hour Ethics Course  

b. Florida Ethics Institute (FEI) offers a 4-hour Florida Ethics & Open Government Master 
Class satisfies the state’s annual ethics training requirement mandated by the Code of Ethics 
for Public Officers and Employees and applicable to elected municipal officers, constitution 
officers, and others. In accordance with the legal mandate the training consists of two hours 
of Ethics Law (covering Florida’s ethics laws and Art. II, s. 8, Fla. Const.), one hour of 
Sunshine Law (Ch. 286, F.S.), and one hour of Public Records Law (Ch. 119, F.S.) education. 
The cost is $75.00. 

• www.floridaethics.org/courses/florida-ethics-law-4-hour-course  

 
 

https://youtu.be/U8JktIMKzyI
https://www.myfloridalegal.com/sites/default/files/2023-05/opengovernmentoverview.pdf
https://www.myfloridalegal.com/sites/default/files/Full%2520audio%25202018%5B2%5D.mp3
https://www.myfloridalegal.com/sites/default/files/Full%2520audio%25202018%5B2%5D.mp3
https://floridaleagueofcities.com/education-and-events/ethics-education
https://iog.fsu.edu/online-ethics
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.floridaethics.org%2fcourses%2fflorida-ethics-law-4-hour-course&c=E,1,b8D0PN97M3kjFpQJ4FW_V8hGP8LfBJuNZ-gu5WWJezePkk3sYrfbq0UFFuZ64pEd0slHLCH7z-adG2i89eLeaH-DCjKm1FOJHKgtwCBT9qVSWF0,&typo=1
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I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to provide the District Manager with an update on recent inspection-
related activities. We will continue to provide updated monthly inspection reports on the status of 
ongoing field activities. 

 

II. CURRENT ASSET UPDATES 
 

1. Entrance & Roadway Maintenance 

2. Landscaping Maintenance 

3. Aquatic Maintenance 

4. Feral Hog Trapping Update 

5. Cane Toad & Tadpole Update 
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1. Entrance & Roadway Maintenance 

• Holiday Décor: Holiday lighting was completed during the first week of November, 
including the installation of remaining lighting, garland, and wreaths at the monument 
signs and guardhouse. 

• Access Control Systems: New cameras have been installed at both the front and back 
gates. This system includes: 

o Eight total cameras, 
o License plate–reading capability for resident access at both gates, 
o Additional access-control equipment is currently in transit. 

This new equipment will replace components the outgoing vendor will be 
removing upon their departure. 

• Welcome Center: CDD staff has access to the former sales center, now the Welcome 
Center. Work included removing old signage, patching and painting drywall, and 
performing a full interior cleaning. 

• Traffic & Signage: Speed Limit Update - The District conducted a community wide 
inventory of speed limit signs following the change to a 25-mph limit. Staff is now 
updating all signage to ensure consistency throughout the community. 

• Street Light Repairs: CDD staff identified 15 non-functioning streetlights within the 
common areas. A repair request has been sent to FPL to replace ballasts and bulbs.  FPL 
lead time on street lights repairs is taking a long time.  

• Gate & Infrastructure Updates: Back Gate Improvements - Delineators have been 
installed to help prevent tailgating and reduce wear on gate equipment. An additional 
five delineators are planned for installation at the exit lane to further protect motors 
and moving components. 

• Timber Bridge Repairs - All four timber bridges remain on schedule for repairs from late 
January to early February. 

o Additional details: 
▪ Vendor will provide a color palette in the coming weeks. 
▪ Extra crews will be assigned to expedite the work. 
▪ Each bridge is estimated to take up to two weeks for completion. 
▪ A full MOT (Maintenance of Traffic) plan and map will be released as the 

project nears. 

• General Maintenance: The guardhouse exterior was cleaned of cobwebs, and the 
interior continues to be serviced weekly by janitorial staff. 
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New Welcome Center – After Repairs 

New Welcome Center – After Repairs 
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2. Landscaping Maintenance 

• Landscape Contract The District has completed an inventory of all District-maintained 
trees. A color-coded map and tree-count spreadsheet were created to support 
management efforts. A purchase order has been issued for trimming, and we are 
awaiting the vendor’s scheduling. 

• A purchase order has been approved for Pine Straw mulch installation along Heritage 
Landing Boulevard, expected mid-December. 

• Holiday annuals have been installed at both the front and back entrances, as well as at 
the Welcome Center. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tree-Count Quantity Spreadsheet 
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New Holiday Annuals Installed at Front Entrance 

New Holiday Annuals Holiday Lighting Installed at Front Entrance 
 



9 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

New Holiday Annuals Holiday Lighting Installed at Front Entrance 

Newly Installed Gate Equipment  
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 Newly Installed Gate Equipment  
 

Newly Installed Gate Equipment  
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3. Aquatic Maintenance  

• Lakes & Vegetation Management - We continue to see strong, sustained improvements 
in overall lake health. 

o Algae levels remain low, largely due to the reduction of dying material (grasses 
and submerged weeds) that previously fueled algae growth. 

o Shoreline weed regrowth continues to be treated but is significantly reduced. 
o Four lakes received submerged weed treatments this month, which we 

anticipate will be the last needed for the near future. 
o Littoral plantings have now been completed on 11 lakes, and all plantings are 

performing well. 
o Midge fly treatments were completed on six lakes, with the second phase 

scheduled for 11/26. A noticeable reduction is already evident with the first 
application. 

• As cooler weather continues, we expect slowed growth of algae, weeds, and submerged 
vegetation. Overall lake conditions continue to improve month over month. 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recently Repaired Lank Bank 
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4. Feral Hog Trapping Update 

• Our goal is to locate damage on and around the property caused by feral swine and 
actively attract feral swine to bait sites on the outer edges of the property for removal. 
Bait site and trap locations are chosen based on the location of damage and created in 
discrete areas to avoid public encounters. This method helps to prevent damage to 
homeowners’ properties and the golf course. The entire property is surveyed 1-2 times 
per week for sign and damage caused by feral swine. 

 
Trap Location 1: (26.82339, -82.03476)  
Total Feral Swine Removed: 15  
Damage Report:  
After the removal of 15 feral swine from this location, damage has come to a stop. The 
pictures below show rooting damage along the edge of the golf course prior to the 
removal of feral swine. As of November 20th, the damage has subsided. 
Action Plan:  
We will continue to bait and monitor this trap location to prevent future pigs from 
working their way onto the golf course. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Trap Location 2: (26.80918, -82,04065) 
Total Feral Swine Removed: 17 
Damage Report:  
Slight damage from rooting has occurred 2-3 times per week in the large grassy area 
that borders the wood line.  
Action Plan:  
A bait site and trap have been established at this location with roughly 17 pigs showing 
up to this site. The pigs have become comfortable with the trap and removal is expected 
in the week following Thanksgiving. 
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Current Bait Site: (26.81433, -82,03816)  
Damage Report:  
Slight damage from rooting occurs 1-2 times per week at this location. 2-3 hogs have 
shown up on camera. 
Action Plan:  
A bait site has been created, as the pigs get comfortable at this location a trap will be 
placed for removal. 
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5. Cane Toad & Tadpole Update 

• Cane toad activity slowed noticeably throughout November, especially following the 
extended cold period from November 10–14, when nighttime temperatures dropped 
into the upper 50s. These conditions significantly reduced movement and limited new 
breeding across the community. 

• Early in the month, light strand material and scattered tadpole pockets were still 
present, but both tapered off rapidly after the cold front. Baby toad activity was minimal 
and observed only in a few areas before temperatures declined. Adult movement also 
dropped off after mid-month. 

• Unless nighttime temperatures return to the mid-60s or higher, continued tadpole 
development is unlikely as we move into December. 

o November Activity Summary (Through Nov. 18) 
▪ Egg Strands: ~51,000 
▪ Tadpoles Removed: ~10,500 
▪ Baby Toads: ~700 
▪ Adult Toads Removed: 50 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Baseball field thriving from over seeding. 



15 
 

III. LOCATION MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Legend

CDD Landscape Maintenance Responsibilities

Parcel Outlines

Heritage Landing Boundary

Tern Bay CDD
Date: 11/6/2025
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Dear Residents, 
 
We’re excited to announce that our community will soon be upgrading to EntranceIQ, a next-
generation visitor management system designed to enhance both access and 
convenience for all residents and guests. 
 
What’s Changing 
EntranceIQ will replace our current system with a modern, easy-to-use platform called EIQ-
Connect, giving you control through both a mobile app and a web-based portal. 
 
Key Features 

• Guest Management: Add guests, send digital QRcodes, and track visits. 

• Notifications: Receive instant alerts when guests arrive. 

• Account Control: Update your contact info and manage preferences. 

• Multi-Property Access: Manage multiple homes from one account. 

• Vehicle Management: Register and manage vehicles for smooth gate access. 

• Pet Profiles: Keep pet information current. 

 
Resident Access Date – Begin Building Your Guest List 
On Monday December 1st 2025 you’ll receive an email from DoNotReply@EntranceIQ.app. 
 
This message will include everything you need to: 

• Activate your account 

• Download the EIQ-Connect app or access the browser version 

• Follow the tutorials to learn how to use the system 

Once you’ve activated your account, you’ll be able to log in and start creating or updating 
your guest list immediately. 

 
 

mailto:DoNotReply@EntranceIQ.app


Action Required: What You Need to Do 

✅ Activate your account as soon as you receive the email. 

✅Create or update your guest list within 3 days of the email date. 

✅Verify your vehicles and update. 
Completing these steps before the go-live date will ensure your guests experience smooth 
entry at the gate. 

 
Official Go-Live Date – Gatehouse Activation 
On Monday December 8, 2025, our access  officers will officially begin using EntranceIQ at 
the gatehouse. 
 
To avoid delays, please make sure your guest list is complete before this date. 
 
Guests not listed in EntranceIQ may be delayed at the gate. 

 
Learn More 
Visit our informational page to explore system features: 
 

👉 https://Discover.EntranceIQ.net/connect 
  
We’re confident that EntranceIQ will make community access smarter and faster for everyone. 
Thank you for your cooperation and enthusiasm as we take this exciting step forward together. 
 
 
Warm regards, 
Tern Bay Community Development District 
 

https://discover.entranceiq.net/e3t/Ctc/ZY+23284/d5Dkvr04/Jl28VMXNW7lDv8P6lZ3p9W8jyj2g8XNsrrW1z_vty69J2nzW1bDRh39bt516W2dVHwW2kQ1kNW2dN1MK2LmsJGW6rF-Kc4mpNb8W2gvgc473lVqQW4SP3JD4fYYTyW7dX2TZ52Vr8VW3001KF69qml1W7qwvtt5_-RbjW7zhJFQ6Md-KDW6Llykv7zr-XjW2lV8P65ThczSW1r_ggJ4s8BhDW4VMBvL2yzhw5W79NrvK3y3qGhVrlH7L8D_GRyW5CQSM02gs1hDW3HXW7g84L96DW2dX1td4SyyhVW2lqsHh4pVpd8W6jtlQ_6j4WmrV-JDCT3lk1F4W97P0Cb4lyDZmVXtX2b4-mTV_W3Rhz9T4fhQblW1GZ4Ql16mWf4W7R7Jmr65Lx88W8S_x0T5mYd3kN4B_Wx53hpBSW5XJ8Dd2qkF6hW85TpL038QKlTW2L1gqG9f4DfyW35-1JP1fjBqBW7PbQf51qDnlwW1PmD783szJ0zW99mmhv80pS23W5fVKVW1zCSMbW88hdlJ28J5kXW1cJKYT57BMTrW3_mgN279N0knW2npTnM30w0CvW9h_dpb2sD6WCW99XVg74fsGhrW5JCqSQ3DShRnW1HHZhT3qXjRjW2MMjMW4c7SJmW8kpnPd1Hh6v6V_vFyH6pq0HBW8HDxC16GQh1HN6hjw12Mblp4W6B8N5k1RTYzHN4pBJlkdDtt0W6-R9zh44vc0cN96xDT2419r2VSBjzN8722vVW66l9LZ5tzVQyW75T6fS6QjzV4W3pzHd_6FhcrSW5kKGSX28JfpgW3m0pQV7ybjNnW8mT64S3-Jm3jW1hlm-P5FmqK4W2rysnx5bmxkpW3zQC691KnZB4W9lFmk17BB8sgW6zVYyT1vYnrZW5qMlPD7-Dp2-VYpywS4rJXhKW1rptKq7fsqJhW1B0m477vpPmtf95lkxn04


From: CDD
To: Cori Dissinger
Subject: Tern Bay CDD- Community Gate Access Update 11.20.25
Date: Thursday, November 20, 2025 3:04:58 PM

  

Dear Residents,

We’re excited to announce that our community will soon be
upgrading to EntranceIQ, a next-generation visitor management
system designed to enhance both access and convenience for all
residents and guests.

What’s Changing
EntranceIQ will replace our current system with a modern, easy-to-

mailto:mlongares@theiconteam.com
mailto:coridissinger@jpwardassociates.com


use platform called EIQ-Connect, giving you control through both a
mobile app and a web-based portal.

Key Features

·        Guest Management: Add guests, send digital QRcodes, and
track visits.
·        Notifications: Receive instant alerts when guests arrive.
·        Account Control: Update your contact info and manage
preferences.
·        Multi-Property Access: Manage multiple homes from one
account.
·        Vehicle Management: Register and manage vehicles for
smooth gate access.
·        Pet Profiles: Keep pet information current.
__________________________________________________
Resident Access Date – Begin Building Your Guest List

On Monday December 1st 2025 you’ll receive an email from
DoNotReply@EntranceIQ.app.

This message will include everything you need to:

1. Activate your account
2. Download the EIQ-Connect app or access the browser

version
3. Follow the tutorials to learn how to use the system

Once you’ve activated your account, you’ll be able to log in and start
creating or updating your guest list immediately.

__________________________________________________
Action Required: What You Need to Do

 Activate your account as soon as you receive the email.
  Create or update your guest list within 3 days of the email date.
  Verify your vehicles and update.
Completing these steps before the go-live date will ensure your
guests experience smooth entry at the gate.

mailto:DoNotReply@EntranceIQ.app


 
Official Go-Live Date – Gatehouse Activation
﻿
On Monday December 8, 2025, our access officers will officially
begin using EntranceIQ at the gatehouse.
To avoid delays, please make sure your guest list is complete before
this date.
Guests not listed in EntranceIQ may be delayed at the gate.
_________________________________________________ 
Learn More
Visit our informational page to explore system features:
﻿ https://Discover.EntranceIQ.net/connect

We’re confident that EntranceIQ will make community access
smarter and faster for everyone. Thank you for your cooperation
and enthusiasm as we take this exciting step forward together.

Warm regards,
Tern Bay Community Development District

 

JPWard & Associates, LLC | 2301 Northeast 37th Street | Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 US
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Dear Residents, 
  
We are excited to announce that Allied Universal will be hosting a meet-n-greet on Sunday, 
December 7th, from 9:00 AM to 2:00 PM. This is your opportunity to meet the new Access 
Control Professionals that you will be seeing at the community entrance starting December 
8th. Please stop by to say hello and meet the team and introduce yourself to our Account 
Manager at the Welcome Center across from the Main Gate.  
  
It is our pleasure to take over the Access Control at Heritage Landing, and we look forward to 
ensuring a safe and secure environment for everyone. Please join us during this time to meet 
the team, ask questions, and learn more about the new Access Control system we are 
implementing. 
  

Thank you for your continued support, and we look forward to seeing you there! 
 

 



From: CDD
To: Cori Dissinger
Subject: Tern Bay CDD- Meet & Greet 12/6/25
Date: Monday, November 24, 2025 5:01:55 PM

  

 Dear Residents,

We are excited to announce that Allied Universal will be hosting a meet-n-greet
on Sunday, December 7th, from 9:00 AM to 2:00 PM.

﻿This is your opportunity to meet the new Access Control Professionals that you
will be seeing at the community entrance starting December 8th. Please stop by to
say hello and meet the team and introduce yourself to our Account Manager at the
Welcome Center across from the Main Gate.

mailto:mlongares@theiconteam.com
mailto:coridissinger@jpwardassociates.com


It is our pleasure to take over the Access Control at Heritage Landing, and we
look forward to ensuring a safe and secure environment for everyone. Please join
us during this time to meet the team, ask questions, and learn more about the new
Access Control system we are implementing.

Thank you for your continued support, and we look forward to seeing you there!

Contact Info-

James Ward
District Manager

jimward@jpwardassociates.com
954-658-4900

Heritage Landing | 14611 Heritage Landing Blvd | Punta Gorda, FL 33955 US

mailto:jimward@jpwardassociates.com
https://visitor.constantcontact.com/do?p=un&m=001nUpSLFknx2WnMv1JYAORag%3D&ch=28dd8e2a-c62e-11f0-b169-0242e3107a27&ca=1ca63114-7f82-4f8b-8a72-08d6ac4d9ee9
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Tern Bay Community Develoment District
Balance Sheet

for the Period Ending October 31, 2025

Capital Project Fund

Description General Fund Series 2005 Series 2022 Series 2022
General Long 

Term Debt
General Fixed 

Assets
Assets  

Cash and Investments
General Fund

Truist - Checking Account 313,310$                -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                        -$                        313,310$                          
FMIT - Investment Account 558,470                  -                                    -                                    -                                    -                          -                          558,470                            

Capital Project Fund
Construction Account -                               -                                    -                                    2,729,159                    -                          -                          2,729,159                         

Debt Service Fund
Reserve Account A -                               50,000                          886,013                        -                                    -                          -                          936,013                            
Revenue -                               75,100                          709,926                        -                                    -                          -                          785,026                            
Prepayment Account -                               1,919                            -                                    -                                    -                          -                          1,919                                 

Accounts Receivable 25,000                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                          -                          25,000                              
Due from Other Funds . . .

General Fund -                               1,228                            21,691                          -                                    -                          -                          22,919                              
Debt Service Fund -                               -                                    -                                    -                                    -                          -                          -                                         
Capital Project Fund  -                               -                                    -                                    -                                    -                          -                          -                                         

Amount Available in Debt Service Funds -                               -                                    -                                    -                                    1,745,876          -                          1,745,876                         
Amount to be Provided by Debt Service Funds -                               -                                    -                                    -                                    28,424,124        -                          28,424,124                       
Investment in General Fixed Assets (net of 
depreciation) -                               -                                    -                                    -                                    -                          24,932,597        24,932,597                       

Total Assets 896,779$                128,246$                     1,617,630$                  2,729,159$                  30,170,000$     24,932,597$     60,474,411$                    

 

Totals                                  
(Memorandum Only)

Governmental Funds

Debt Service Funds Account Groups

Unaudited
Prepared by:
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Tern Bay Community Develoment District
Balance Sheet

for the Period Ending October 31, 2025

Capital Project Fund

Description General Fund Series 2005 Series 2022 Series 2022
General Long 

Term Debt
General Fixed 

Assets

 

Totals                                  
(Memorandum Only)

Governmental Funds

Debt Service Funds Account Groups

Liabilities
Accounts Payable 165,782$                -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                        -$                        165,782$                          
Due to Other Funds

General Fund -                               -                                    -                                    -                                    -                          -                          -                                         
Debt Service Fund 22,919                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                          -                          22,919                              
Capital Projects Fund -                               -                                    -                                    -                                    -                          -                          -                                         

Bonds Payable  
Current Portion (Due within 12 months)

Series 2005A -                               -                                    -                                    -                                    55,000               -                          55,000                              
Series 2022 -                               -                                    -                                    -                                    640,000             -                          640,000                            

Long Term
Series 2005A -                               -                                    -                                    -                                    800,000             -                          800,000                            
Series 2022 -                               -                                    -                                    -                                    28,675,000        -                          28,675,000                       

Total Liabilities   188,701$                -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  30,170,000$     -$                        30,358,701$                    

Fund Equity and Other Credits
Investment in General Fixed Assets -                               -                                    -                                    -                                    -                          24,932,597        24,932,597                       
Fund Balance

Restricted
Beginning: October 1, 2025 (Unaudited) -                               126,610                        1,593,549                    4,422,150                    -                          -                          6,142,310                         
Results from Current Operations -                               1,636                            24,081                          (1,692,991)                   -                          -                          (1,667,275)                        

Unrestricted
Beginning: October 1, 2025 (Unaudited) 847,134                  -                                    -                                    -                                    -                          -                          847,134                            
Results from Current Operations (139,055)                 -                                    -                                    -                                    -                          -                          (139,055)                           

Total Fund Equity and Other Credits 708,078$                128,246$                     1,617,630$                  2,729,159$                  -$                        24,932,597$     30,115,710$                    

Total Liabilities, Fund Equity and Other Credits 896,779$                128,246$                     1,617,630$                  2,729,159$                  30,170,000$     24,932,597$     60,474,411$                    

Unaudited
Prepared by:

JPWARD and Associates, LLC 2



Tern Bay Community Development District
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Through October 31, 2025

Description October  Year to Date 
Total Annual 

Budget
% of 

Budget

Revenue and Other Sources
Carryforward -$                      -$                        -$                         0%

Interest
Interest - FMIT 1,892                1,892                  -                           0%

Special Assessment Revenue
Special Assessments - On-Roll 13,952              13,952                1,249,598 1%

Special Assessments - Off-Roll -                         -                           -                           0%

Other Fees and Charges
Discounts and Tax Collector Fees -                         -                           (87,472)               0%

Total Revenue and Other Sources: 15,844$           15,844$             1,162,126$        1%

Expenditures and Other Uses
Legislative

Board of Supervisor's - Fees 1,000                1,000                  12,000                8%

Executive
Professional Management 4,167                4,167                  50,000                8%

Financial and Administrative
Audit Services -                         -                           6,600                  0%

Accounting Services 2,275                2,275                  27,300                8%

Assessment Roll Services 2,275                2,275                  27,300                8%

Arbitrage Rebate Services 500                   500                     1,000                  50%

Other Contractual Services
Recording and Transcription -                         -                           -                           0%

Legal Advertising 286                   286                     1,500                  19%

Property Appraiser & Tax Collector Fees -                         -                           50                        0%

Trustee Services -                         -                           8,009                  0%

Dissemination Agent  Services -                         -                           6,000                  0%

Bond Amortization Schedules -                         -                           -                           0%

Bank Services -                         -                           250                      0%

Communications & Freight Services
Postage, Freight & Messenger -                         -                           150                      0%

Web Site Development -                         -                           2,400                  0%

Insurance 35,666              35,666                36,242                98%

Meeting Room Rental -                         -                           250                      0%

Printing & Binding -                         -                           300                      0%

Subscription & Memberships -                         -                           175                      0%

Legal Services
Legal - General Counsel -                         -                           6,500                  0%

Other General Government Services
Engineering Services - General Fund -                         -                           15,000                0%

Canoe Path Improv (Permit Analysis) -                         -                           2,500                  0%

Unaudited
Prepared by:

JPWARD and Associates, LLC 3



Tern Bay Community Development District
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Through October 31, 2025

Description October  Year to Date 
Total Annual 

Budget
% of 

Budget

Other Public Safety
Guardhouse Operations

Professional - Gate Attendant 13,398              13,398                -                           0%

Resident Access Control System 506                   506                     -                           0%

Utilities

Electric -                         -                           -                           0%

Water & Wastewater -                         -                           -                           0%

Repairs & Maintenance

Guardhouse Janitorial 195                   195                     -                           0%

Gate 624                   624                     -                           0%

Miscellaneous Repairs 272                   272                     -                           0%

Captal Outlay

Guardhouse/Security 67,206              67,206                -                           0%

Stormwater Management System
Preserve Area Maitenance

Professional Services

Operations Management -                         -                           10,000                0%

Repairs & Maintenance

Clearing downed Trees/Cleanup -                         -                           10,000                0%

Preserve Path Maitenance -                         -                           5,000                  0%

Installation - No Trespassing Signs -                         -                           15,000                0%

Removal of Wild Hogs -                         -                           15,000                0%

Aquatic Weed Control

Lake Vegetation Removal 3,750                3,750                  -                           0%

Lake, Lake Bank, Ltrl Shelf Maitenance
Professional Services

Operations Management -                         -                           10,000                0%

Fountains/Bubblers -                         -                           750                      0%

Repairs & Maintenance

Aquatic Weed Control -                         -                           75,000                0%

Aerations System -                         -                           500                      0%

Ctrl Sructures, Catch Basins, Outfalls -                         -                           75,000                0%

Captal Outlay

Aerations Systems/Fountains -                         -                           15,000                0%

Unaudited
Prepared by:
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Tern Bay Community Development District
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Through October 31, 2025

Description October  Year to Date 
Total Annual 

Budget
% of 

Budget

Road & Street Facilities
Professional Management

Asset Management -                         -                           15,000                0%

Street Lights

Electric Service

Electric Service 8,531                8,531                  101,000              8%

Repairs & Maintenance

Sidewalk Repairs -                         -                           2,500                  0%

Bridge -                         -                           5,000                  0%

Street Lights/Directional Signs 2,373                2,373                  15,000                16%

Street Sweeping 2,850                2,850                  5,000                  57%

Miscellaneous Repairs 1,777                1,777                  10,000                18%

Contingencies -                         -                           -                           0%

Landscaping Services
Professional Management

Asset Management -                         -                           25,000                0%

Repairs & Maintenance

Common Area Maintenance -                         -                           300,000              0%

Annual Holiday Decorations 7,250                7,250                  12,000                60%

Landscape Lighting -                         -                           -                           0%

Wildlife Control - Hog Trapping -                         -                           -                           0%

Contingencies -                         -                           -                           0%

Reserves
Extraordinary Capital/Operations -                         -                           236,850              0%

Total Expenditures and Other Uses: 154,899$         154,899$           1,162,126$        13%

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Fund Balance (139,055)          (139,055)            -                      

Fund Balance - Beginning 847,134           847,134             847,134              
Fund Balance - Ending 708,078$         708,078$           847,134$           

Unaudited
Prepared by:
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Tern Bay Community Development District
Debt Service Fund - Series 2005 Bonds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Through October 31, 2025

Description October  Year to Date 
Total Annual 

Budget
% of 

Budget

Revenue and Other Sources
Carryforward -$                         -$                        -$                       0%
Interest Income

Reserve Account 168                      168                     -                         0%
Prepayment Account 6                           6                         -                         0%
Revenue Account 234                      234                     6,532                 4%

Special Assessment Revenue
Special Assessments - On-Roll 1,228                   1,228                 109,006            1%
Special Assessments - Off-Roll -                            -                          -                         0%
Special Assessments - Prepayments -                            -                          -                         0%

Other Fees and Charges
Discounts and Other Fees -                            -                          (7,131)               0%

Operating Transfers In (From Other Funds) -                            -                          -                         0%
Total Revenue and Other Sources: 1,636$                 1,636$               108,407$          2%

Expenditures and Other Uses
Debt Service

Principal Debt Service - Mandatory
Series 2005 Bonds -                            -                          55,000              0%

Principal Debt Service - Early Redemptions
Series 2005 Bonds -                            -                          -                         0%

Interest Expense
Series 2005A Bonds -                            -                          46,494              0%

Trustee Services -                            -                          
Operating Transfers Out (To Other Funds) -                            -                          -                         0%

Total Expenditures and Other Uses: -$                         $0 101,494$          0%

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Fund Balance 1,636                   1,636                 6,913                 
Fund Balance - Beginning 126,610               126,610             126,610            
Fund Balance - Ending 128,246$            128,246$          133,523$          

Unaudited
Prepared by:
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Tern Bay Community Development District
Debt Service Fund - Series 2022 Bonds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Through October 31, 2025

Description October  Year to Date 
Total Annual 

Budget
% of 

Budget

Revenue and Other Sources
Carryforward -$                         -$                          -$                       0%
Interest Income

Reserve Account 2,993                   2,993                   -                         0%
Revenue Account 2,389                   2,389                   81,466              3%

Special Assessment Revenue
Special Assessments - On-Roll 21,691                 21,691                 1,930,204         1%
Special Assessments - Off-Roll -                            -                            -                         0%

Other Fees and Charges -                            -                         
Discounts and Other Fees -                            -                            (124,042)           0%

Operating Transfers In (From Other Funds) -                            -                            -                         0%
Total Revenue and Other Sources: 27,073$               27,073                 1,887,628$       1%

Expenditures and Other Uses
Debt Service

Principal Debt Service - Mandatory
Series 2022 Bonds -                            -                            640,000            0%

Principal Debt Service - Early Redemptions
Series 2022 Bonds -                            -                            -                         0%

Interest Expense
Series 2022 Bonds -                            -                            1,139,295         0%

Operating Transfers Out (To Other Funds) 2,993                   2,993                   -                         0%
Total Expenditures and Other Uses: 2,993$                 $2,993 1,779,295$       0%

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Fund Balance 24,081                 24,081                 108,333            
Fund Balance - Beginning 1,593,549           1,593,549            1,593,549         
Fund Balance - Ending 1,617,630$      1,617,630$      1,701,882$   

Unaudited
Prepared by:
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Tern Bay Community Development District
Capital Projects Fund - Series 2022

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Through October 31, 2025

Description October  Year to Date 

  
Annual 
Budget 

% of 
Budget

Revenue and Other Sources
Carryforward -                          -$                       -$                   0%
Interest Income

Construction Account 14,933            14,933            -                     0%
Operating Transfers In (From Other Funds) 2,993               2,993              -                     0%

Total Revenue and Other Sources: 17,926$             17,926$            -$                  0%

Expenditures and Other Uses
Capital Outlay

Water-Sewer Combination 424,032             424,032             -                     0%
Stormwater Management 122,966             122,966             -                     0%
Roadway Improvement 1,163,920          1,163,920         -                     0%

Operating Transfers Out (To Other Funds) -                          -                          -                     0%
Total Expenditures and Other Uses: 1,710,918$        1,710,918$       -$                  0%

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Fund Balance (1,692,991)         (1,692,991)        -                     
Fund Balance - Beginning 4,422,150          4,422,150         -                     
Fund Balance - Ending 2,729,159$        2,729,159$       -$                  

Unaudited
Prepared by:
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Income and Expense by Month
October 2025

Income
Expense
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Expense Summary
October 2025

By Account

63.11%5410000 · Road & Street Facilities
22.695360000 · Water-Sewer Combination
6.785380000 · Stormwater Management System
4.405290000 · Other Public Safety
1.915134500 · Insurance
0.395790000 · Landscaping Services
0.275130000 · Financial and Administrative
0.225120000 · Executive
0.165810000 · Inter-Fund Group Transfers Out
0.055110000 · Legislative
0.025133400 · Other Contractual Services

$1,868,810.09Total

Tern Bay Community Development District
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